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STRATEGIC REPORT 
 
 
STRATEGY  
 
Gatwick Airport Limited (“the Company”, “the Airport” and “Gatwick”) operates in a competitive market. 
Passengers have a choice as to which airport they fly from and airlines have alternative bases from which to 
operate. The Company’s strategy for the Airport is to transform the passenger experience and improve 
efficiency for the airlines and the Airport itself, thereby improving its competitiveness in the London airport 
market. A key element of the Company’s strategy is to build and maintain strong relationships with its airline 
customers, regulators and other stakeholders. 
 
The Company has set out its ambition and has established six strategic priorities to which the Company’s 
activities are aligned.  
 
The strategic priorities, and the approach the Company is taking to achieve them has been outlined below:  
 

 deliver the best passenger experience: by listening to its passengers and delivering the kind of service 

that will make them choose to fly from Gatwick;  

 help our airlines grow: by understanding airlines’ goals and developing commercial partnerships;  

 increase value and efficiency: by maximising income, lowering its operating costs and driving capital 

efficiency;  

 protect and enhance its reputation: by building strong and constructive relationships with its 

stakeholders based on openness and trust;  

 build a strong environment, health and safety (“EH&S”) culture: by maintaining a relentless focus on 

achieving zero incidents; and  

 develop the best people, processes and technology: by investing in high-performing people, 

continuous improvement and deploying the right systems. 

 
 
 

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT  

  
In March 2008 the Civil Aviation Authority (“CAA”) published its price control review for Gatwick Airport for 
the five year period ended 31 March 2013 (“Q5”). This was extended by one year so that the Q5 regulatory 
period expired on 31 March 2014. The price control constrained the growth in aeronautical revenue yield per 
passenger to no more than RPI+2% at Gatwick for the five years to 31 March 2013, and to RPI-0.5% for the 
year to 31 March 2014.  

 
In the CAA’s Q5 decision there were incentive arrangements to promote quality of service and the timely 
completion of capital projects.  
 
On 19 December 2012, the Civil Aviation Act 2012 (“CA Act 2012”) was passed modernising the system of 
economic regulation of airports in the UK.  
 
The CA Act 2012 provides for the economic licensing of dominant airports (and dominant airport areas) 
where operators are determined by the CAA to have passed the Market Power Test in the CA Act 2012, 
which includes the CAA determining that the operator has Substantial Market Power. Where the CAA  
determines that a licence is required, the CA Act 2012 gives the CAA greater flexibility to align the regulatory 
requirements that it imposes with the market and competitive position at the relevant airport, concentrating 
more on service quality and performance incentives. Where a licence is not required, an airport’s activities 
will remain subject to general competition law and the provisions of the Airport Charges Regulations, in 
respect of both of which the CAA will have an enforcement role. 
 
All airport operators are subject to aerodrome licensing under the Air Navigation Order 2009, which requires 
an airport operator to demonstrate that it is competent to conduct aerodrome operations safely. That 
licensing requirement is not affected by the CA Act 2012.  
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT  (continued) 
 
The CAA published its decision on the assessment of Gatwick’s market power in January 2014, where it 
concluded that Gatwick passed the Market Power Test in the CA Act 2012 and should be issued with a 
licence. The Company submitted to the CAA various analyses of airport competition during the CAA’s 
consultation process, setting out reasons why the Market Power Test is not met at Gatwick. The Company 
decided not to appeal to the Competition Appeal Tribunal the CAA’s decision that the Market Power Test 
was met. 
 
The CAA, as part of its preparations for any regulation beyond the end of Q5, required the Company to 
participate in constructive engagement with the airlines operating at Gatwick (assessing key themes such as 
capital investment, traffic forecasts, operating costs and commercial revenue opportunities) and to submit a 
Business Plan to the CAA in January 2013.   
 
As part of the Business Plan submission to the CAA the Company proposed that the Airport would enter into 
a set of legally enforceable Commitments to airlines covering price, service, transparency, financial 
resilience, operational resilience and dispute resolution. The proposal was that these Commitments would be 
in place for seven years from April 2014 and would replace the need for economic regulation of Gatwick by 
the CAA. In addition, the Company envisaged that there would be a series of bilateral Contracts, 
incorporating, for example, price, service and duration, agreed on a commercial basis between the Company 
and individual airlines.  
 
In parallel with the regulatory review, and under the framework of the Commitments, the Airport continued 
discussions with airlines to agree bilateral Contracts, incorporating, for example, price, service and duration, 
agreed on a commercial basis between the Company and individual airlines. As of 31 March 2014, the 
Company had signed contracts or agreed Heads of Terms with all of the significant airlines by passenger 
volume operating at the Airport. 
 
In February 2014, the CAA published its Decision and Notice granting a licence to Gatwick, with this coming 
into force on 1 April 2014. The CAA’s Decision incorporates Commitments proposed by the Airport within a 
licence. It is therefore a requirement of the licence that GAL complies with its obligations in the 
Commitments. This includes that GAL complies with its commitment  to incorporate a maximum average 
revenue yield over the next seven years, based on published prices at RPI+1.0% per year, and average 
prices (taking into account bilateral contracts) at RPI+0.0% per year (i.e. the “blended price”). It also includes 
that GAL complies with its Commitment to undertake capital investment expenditure of at least £100.0 million 
per annum over the next seven years. Obligations on third parties, contained in the Commitments do not 
form part of the licence.    
 
In the Decision, the CAA set out, amongst other things, its view of the “fair price” in the five years from 1 April 
2014 of RPI-1.6% per year. The CAA also considered that GAL should undertake capital investment 
expenditure of at least £160.0 million per annum on average. The CAA stated that it intends to monitor GAL’s 
pricing and other behaviours (such as capital investment expenditure), on an annual basis to assess the 
extent to which the out-turn average prices (taking into account bilateral contracts) is consistent with its 
assessment of the “fair price” at RPI-1.6% and capital investment expenditure is at least £160.0 million per 
annum on average. If, as part of the CAA’s monitoring of the Commitments, the CAA considers that the 
introduction of further licence conditions, or modifications to existing licence conditions is in the passenger 
interest, then the CAA can propose such modifications at that time.  This could be for example, to introduce a 
requirement for GAL to set its charges consistent with the CAA’s view of its “fair price” or its view of minimum 
capital investment expenditure.  Such licence modifications could be appealed by the Airport or airlines, to 
the Competition and Markets Authority.  The CAA will also undertake a review of Commitments in the second 
half of 2016 to assess whether they are operating in the passenger interest.   
 
The CAA’s decision also includes a financial resilience condition.  This requires GAL to produce a certificate 
of adequacy of resources and submit this to the CAA on an annual basis.  This condition also restricts the 
business of GAL to the businesses undertaken on 1 April 2014, including the owning and operation of the 
Airport.  Any other business will require the written consent of the CAA.  Finally, the financial resilience 
condition requires undertakings from the ultimate holding company to not take action that would likely cause 
a breach of the licence and provide information requested by the CAA to enable GAL to comply with the 
licence. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

 
REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT (continued) 
 
Requirements as to operational resilience are included within GAL’s Commitments and as such are not 
subject to a separate licence condition.  However, as with pricing and capital investment expenditure above, 
the CAA can propose to introduce such licence conditions to the extent it considers such modification is in 
the passenger interest.  Similarly, such a licence modification could be appealed by the Airport or airlines, to 
the Competition and Markets Authority. 
 
The CAA has also stated that as part of the monitoring regime, GAL should produce a shadow RAB 
calculation. The purpose of this requirement is in case the CAA considers that the passenger interest would 
be better served in the future by tighter regulation being introduced.  Again, this requirement does not form 
part of the licence, but if the CAA proposes to modify the licence in such a way that decision modification 
could be appealed by the Airport or airlines, to the Competition and Markets Authority. 
 
The CAA’s decision to grant a licence could have been appealed by the Company or airlines, to the 
Competition and Markets Authority.  No appeal of the Decision was submitted. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 

 
Airports Commission 

 
Runway capacity in peak periods in the South East of England has become increasingly constrained as air 
travel demand has increased. In July 2010, the current UK Government stated that it did not support the 
construction of new runways at Heathrow, Gatwick or Stansted, the major airports in the South East. In its 
2011 National Infrastructure Plan, the UK Government noted that, while it would look at "all options for 
maintaining the UK's aviation hub status", this did not extend to supporting the construction of a third runway 
at Heathrow airport.  
 
In September 2012, the government established the Independent Airports Commission ("Airports 
Commission"), chaired by Sir Howard Davies, to identify and recommend to the Government, options for 
delivering additional UK airport capacity in the short, medium and long term. As part of the Airports 
Commission process, Gatwick submitted its outline proposals for providing additional runway capacity in the 
longer term in July 2013.  
 
On 17 December 2013, the Airports Commission released its interim report which concluded that there is a 
need for at least one additional runway to be in operation in the South East of the UK by 2030. The Airports 
Commission will be taking forward for further detailed study proposals for new runways at two locations: 
Gatwick Airport (a new runway south of the existing runway) and Heathrow Airport (a new runway to the 
northwest or an extension of the existing northern runway). The next phase will see the Airports Commission 
undertaking a detailed appraisal of the three options identified before a public consultation in winter 2014/15, 
with a final report to the Government due by summer 2015. The Airports Commission has not shortlisted the 
Thames Estuary options, but will undertake a further study of the Isle of Grain option in the first half of 2014 
to assess whether that option offers a credible proposal for consideration alongside the other shortlisted 
options, the outcome will be known in September 2014. 
 

In May 2014, Gatwick submitted to the Airports Commission its revised proposals for the development of an 

additional runway and associated infrastructure. This set out why expansion at Gatwick is the obvious 

solution to meeting the UK’s connectivity needs for the next generation. 

  

A second runway at Gatwick will enable more people to fly to more destinations, earlier. It can be delivered 

more cost effectively, with a higher degree of certainty and much less planning, construction and financial 

risk. Expansion at Gatwick will increase competition to destinations around the world from London’s airports 

which will deliver extra capacity at a lower cost and lower fares for all passengers. Furthermore, this can be 

delivered at no additional cost or risk to the taxpayer. 
 
A new runway at Gatwick will further enhance the Airport’s ability to provide direct long haul routes to 
international business centres in developed and emerging economies key to long term UK economic growth, 
building upon existing routes to Moscow, Beijing, Turkey, Saudi Arabia and South East Asia. 
 
Gatwick’s work programme will continue to cover all issues which the Airport understands will be relevant to 
the Airports Commission’s process and the eventual policy decision by the Government on airport 
expansion. Gatwick will continue to evaluate the environmental, surface access and economic impacts. As 
Gatwick was shortlisted it was recognised that local communities around Gatwick would have many 
questions about what a second runway at Gatwick would mean for them.  Therefore, Gatwick undertook a 
public consultation of the development options, the purpose of which to provide further information and to 
give the local communities an opportunity to tell us what they thought about them. 
 
For at least for the rest of this decade, London’s airports will be relying on their existing physical capacity to 
meet expected increasing demand. Gatwick’s work and submission to the Airports Commission in May 2014 
includes a detailed evaluation of how Gatwick’s existing single runway capacity can be maximised to 
contribute to the short-term capacity needs for London and the UK. 
 
The UK Government's 2013 National Infrastructure Plan further supported this approach to assessing the 
medium and long term capacity challenge at the largest airports in the South East of England. In particular, it 
supported proposals by the Airports Commission to improve surface transport access to key airports, 
including a government commitment of £50 million towards a full redevelopment of the railway station at 
Gatwick.  
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 
REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS 
 
Under section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”), the Company is required to produce a fair review 
of the business of the Company, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the 
Company, an analysis of the development and performance of the business during the year, and position at 
the year end. Furthermore, additional information is provided under this Business Review in accordance with 
the Walker Guidelines, which sets out suggestions for best practice for Portfolio Companies owned by 
private equity investors (of which Gatwick Airport Limited is deemed to be one), which the Company has 
complied with.  
 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014  
 
The Company made a profit of £57.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 compared to a loss of £29.1 
million in the year ended 31 March 2013. These results are discussed in more detail in the financial review 
on page 15.  
 
Passenger traffic trends 

 

  Year ended  
31 March 2014  

Year ended  
31 March 2013  

    

Passengers   35,868,451  34,241,280  

Air transport movements (“ATMs”)   247,863  238,339  

    

Passengers per ATM  144.7  143.7  

    

Load factors (%)  83.2  82.6  

 
In the year ended 31 March 2014, a total of 35.9 million (2013: 34.2 million) passengers travelled through 
Gatwick; an increase of 1.7 million passengers or 4.8%. During the year, Gatwick achieved its record 
monthly passenger number in August 2013 of 4.03 million passengers. Total Air Transport Movements 
(“ATMs”) were up 4.0% or 9.5k compared to the prior year. The majority (84%) of the passenger growth was 
due to the increase in ATMs. Load factors increased by 0.6% points to 83.2%. 
 
The table below outlines passenger numbers by region for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the 
comparative year ended 31 March 2013. 
 

  Year ended  
31 March 2014  

Year ended  
31 March 2013  

    

Europe   29,706,865 27,937,188  

North America  1,965,942 2,154,479  

Caribbean and Latin America  1,575,121 1,587,871  

Northern and Sub-Saharan Africa  1,537,986 1,572,970  

Middle East and Central Asia  807,406 688,907  

Far East and South Asia  275,131 299,865  

    

Total  35,868,451 34,241,280  

 
The European market continued to be Gatwick’s largest market (82.8%) and grew significantly by 6.3% (1.8 
million passengers). The majority (64.3%) of the overall total growth was generated by routes to Spain. 
Middle East and Central Asian routes recorded the second highest growth, mainly due to Emirates, which 
operated larger and fuller planes (seats per movement increased by 5.9% coupled with 7.3% point increase 
in load factor to 89.3%). 
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 
Passenger traffic trends (continued) 
 
Incumbent airlines such as easyJet, Norwegian Air Shuttle and British Airways continue to contribute to 
majority of the growth by increasing frequencies, operating new routes and fuller planes. In particular, 
Norwegian Air Shuttle’s traffic increased by 66.6% (0.9 million passengers) against the same period in the 
prior year; 47.3% of this growth was due to the 14 new routes including Barcelona, Alicante, Nice, and Las 
Palmas, with the remainder of the growth resulting from an increase in frequencies on existing routes and 
flying fuller planes. New routes operated by easyJet including Moscow and Bergen and increases in 
frequencies on existing routes contributed to majority of the overall growth of 6.7% (0.9 million passengers).  

 
New airlines from the previous year having operated for a full year contributed to the increase in passengers, 
most notably Vueling with 0.2 million passengers in total.  
 
The real competition in the market has continued to impact traffic at Gatwick, with some airlines operating 
reduced services (Flybe and Ryanair) and others ceasing operations at Gatwick including US Airways, 
Aerosvit, Korean Air and Hong Kong airlines. Flybe’s traffic declined 12.6% as it reduced its route offering 
from Gatwick. Flybe also sold its slots to easyJet and as of 1 April 2014 will operate a single route to 
Newquay. Ryanair’s traffic continued to decline and was down by 9.2% compared to the prior year, mainly 
due to not operating the Stockholm and Oslo routes.  
 
 
Route Development 
 
Gatwick continued to develop its route network and grow its market share through both existing and new 
airlines. Gatwick reached a new London market share milestone, recording a rolling 12 month market share 
of 25.5%. This is the highest Gatwick’s market share has been in the last decade.  
 
The majority of Gatwick’s growth continued to come from its existing airlines. British Airways continued to 
make changes to focus their network on leisure flying. They cancelled their Manchester service but launched 
several new routes to Spain, including Alicante, Lanzarote, Tenerife and Santiago. From March 2014 the 
airline also launched new routes to Malta.   

 
Norwegian delivered significant growth during the year ended 31 March 2014 through basing 3 aircraft at 
Gatwick.  These aircraft launched routes to 14 Southern European destinations such as Barcelona and 
Tenerife as well as significantly increasing frequency on Scandinavian routes. These increases to 
Scandinavia mean Norwegian now offer a business friendly, multiple daily frequency product to capitals such 
as Oslo, Stockholm, Copenhagen and Helsinki. Looking forward to 2014 Norwegian will bolster their 
presence at Gatwick through adding another 2 based short haul and 1 long haul aircraft.  We are looking 
forward to welcoming their direct services to New York, Los Angeles and Fort Lauderdale from July 2014.  
 
EasyJet continued their strong growth at Gatwick, launching new routes to Kalamata, Santiago and 
Bucharest during the year.  Looking forward, easyJet completed the acquisition of Flybes slots and launched 
a number of new routes to Paris, Brussels, Stuttgart, Tel Aviv, Newcastle and Jersey which will helps support 
their business passenger strategy.  
 
Other airlines increasing capacity during the year included Aer Lingus, who launched a 3 daily service to 
Belfast City Airport and Thomson who launched a new direct service to Phuket in late 2013. Turkish airlines 
continued their growth to Istanbul, increasing to 4 daily services.   
 
A number of airlines launched services during the year in the short haul market, most notably Vueling who 
launched twice daily flights to Barcelona before increasing their frequency to three daily flights from March 
2014 and also added a daily Florence service  
 

Royal Air Maroc commenced services to Casablanca and Marrakesh and Swiss launched a winter ski 
service to Geneva.  
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 

Route development (continued) 
 
There were a number of exciting new developments during the year which are expected to contribute to 
future passenger growth within the long haul market with the following notable highlights:  
 

 Flynas, a new low cost long haul airline commenced a 3 times per week service to Jeddah  

 Air China returned to Gatwick in March 14 following a brief suspension during winter  

 Emirates commenced regular A380 operations; and  

 Existing long haul operator, British Airways added an 11
th
 Boeing 777 aircraft, increasing frequencies 

on existing routes.  
 

A number of airlines ceased operations to Gatwick during the year ended 31 March 2014. This included US 
Airways who moved their operations to Heathrow, Air Berlin who ceased operations to Nuremberg and 
Lufthansa who cancelled their services to Frankfurt.  
 

Looking forward through 2014, Garuda Indonesia will operate a six per week London to Jakarta service from 
Gatwick enabling business and leisure passengers to fly between Indonesia and UK. The route will aid the 
ambition of Prime Minister David Cameron, to double trade (goods and services) between the two 
economies by 2015 to £4.4 billion.  

 
Research from Goldman Sachs has identified eight key “growth markets” – the world’s most dynamic 
economies – and Gatwick Airport will serve four of them by the end of 2014. Alongside a new route to 
Indonesia, Gatwick already serves Moscow, Beijing and Istanbul. In addition, new direct services to the key 
emerging market of Vietnam have been increased during the year, proving there is real scope to use existing 
capacity at London’s airports today, to establish links to major new business destinations. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 

Capital Investment Programme 
 
The key strategic objective for Gatwick is to become London’s airport of choice. A key enabler in delivering 
this objective is continued focus on transforming the experience of passengers and airlines experience of 
using the Airport through both investment in modern infrastructure and improving service standards. This will 
ensure customers enjoy a superior airport experience relative to competitors, encouraging greater utilisation 
of Gatwick and supporting its long-term growth ambitions. 
 
Gatwick has continued to invest heavily in its Capital Investment Programme, spending £201.0 million in the 
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: £226.7m). The Company’s focus continued to be on investment in modern 
infrastructure and improving service standards that transform the passengers and airlines experience of 
using the Airport. In September 2013 the Airport failed to meet one of the new Q5+1 triggers (completion of 
new crew reporting facilities), by a period of one month.  This resulted in a trigger payment of £0.2 million.  
 
The graph below shows actual capital expenditure per year for Q5: 
 

 
 
 
Key projects that were completed during the year include: 
 

 The second phase of the refurbishment of the South Terminal departure lounge completed in August 
2013. The project delivered new and improved retail offerings to passengers through the addition of 
new retailers including premium brands like Ernest Jones and Aspinal of London, and expanded 
retail space for incumbent retailers such as Harrods. 

 The first phase of a project reconfiguring aircraft stands and gate rooms in Pier 5 was completed in 
October 2013.  The Pier 5 project has the overall business objective of delivering improved Pier 
Service Levels to meet future growth in passenger numbers in the North Terminal and support the 
overall Pier Service Level target of 95%. The project will create a new and faster route for 
passengers from the departure lounge to the gate rooms.   

 Improvements to the North Terminal departure lounge were delivered during the period. The delivery 
has improved the food, beverage and retail offerings within the existing footprint of the departure 
lounge to provide increased capacity and improved service to passengers. 
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 
Capital Investment Programme (continued) 

 
 

 A project that has extended and refurbished Atlantic House to accommodate improved crew 
reporting facilities and airline operational processes completed in October 2013. The project 
supports airlines’ ability to deliver on time performance and thereby strengthen Gatwick’s competitive 
position. 

 The reconfiguration of stand 110 to accommodate A380 aircraft completed in April 2013. The new 
stand is a symbol of the major changes that have happened at Gatwick under new ownership. The 
fact that the Airport can and does now offer current and future airlines a pier-served facility for A380 
aircraft demonstrates the scale of ambition for the future of Gatwick. 

 Refurbishment to Gatwick train station. The works have improved the main station concourse as well 
as provided an additional seventh platform. Gatwick contributed £7.0 million towards this project 
which was undertaken by Network Rail. In addition, the project has renewed the existing signalling 
system in the Gatwick area to a modern equivalent system.    

 Gatwick has created 21 additional slots (from Summer 2014) through the ACDM55 airfield efficiency 
project. This project has involved collaborative working with Gatwick’s airfield team, as well as 
partner airlines, NATS and ground operators. 

 
Key projects that commenced during the year, but not yet complete as at 31 March 2014 include:  
 

 Construction of a new South Terminal Baggage Factory and Pier 1, including delivery of an 

automated baggage storage facility.  The innovative design solution will include an automated 

baggage storage facility, providing airlines and passengers with greater check-in and baggage 

processing capacity and flexibility, including enhanced early check in options, as well as modern 

gate rooms and segregated departures and arrivals routes.  Demolition of the existing Pier 1 

commenced in April 2013 and was completed in December 2013. The new Pier 1 will be in operation 

in 2015. 

 The second phase of reconfiguration of Pier 5.  The Pier will be in full operation in 2015.  

 In addition to the development of the terminals, the Airport commenced a number of projects in 

relation to flood alleviation and water management.  

 
Regulatory Asset Base 
 
The Regulatory Asset Base (“RAB”) of Gatwick is provided to the CAA and published as at 31 March of each 
year during Q5 in the Company’s Regulatory Accounts. 
 

    RAB 
£m 

31 March 2013   2,391.6  

31 March 2014   2,498.6  

 
The RAB is rolled forward between each date according to a formula (including depreciation and indexation) 
set out by the CAA. The RAB has increased by £107.0 million or 4.5% to £2,498.6 million as at 31 March 
2014 (2013: £2,391.6 million) largely driven by the Q5 capital expenditure programme, with total spend of 
£201.0 million in 2013 (2013: £226.7 million). 
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 
Financing Structure 
 
Gatwick Airport Limited is party to a Common Terms Agreement (“CTA”) with, inter alia, the Royal Bank of 
Scotland plc as ACF agent and previously the Initial Authorised Credit Facility agent. The Company has a 
Borrower Loan Agreement with both Gatwick Funding Limited (as Issuer) and Deutsche Trustee Company 
Limited (as Borrower Security Trustee). The CTA together with a Master Definitions Agreement covers, inter 
alia, the Initial Authorised Credit Facility Agreement (the “Initial ACF Agreement”), the Authorised Credit 
Facility Agreement (the “ACF Agreement”)  and the Borrower Loan Agreement. 
 
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company completed a refinancing whereby the Initial ACF 
agreement was fully prepaid and terminated and a new Authorised Credit Facility (the “ACF Agreement”) 
was agreed. The new ACF Agreement is pursuant to the CTA and Master Definitions Agreement. The 
Company’s subsidiary, Gatwick Funding Limited completed the issuance of a £350.0 million Class A 4.625 
per cent. Bond, the proceeds of which were lent to the company under the Borrower Loan Agreement.   
 
The Initial ACF Agreement which comprised a Term Facility of £620.0 million, a non-revolving Capex Facility 
of £300.0 million and a Revolving Credit Facility of £50.0 million, had the outstanding drawings of £106.4 
million, £191.0 million and £25.0 million respectively fully prepaid and terminated on 27 March 2014.  
 
The ACF Agreement has a Revolving Credit Facility of £300.0 million and a tenor of 5 years giving a 
termination date of 27 March 2019. As at 31 March 2014, the Company had £300.0 million undrawn 
committed borrowing facilities available in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at that 
date. 
 
The Company’s subsidiary Gatwick Funding Limited, had previously issued £1,200.0 million of publicly listed 
fixed rate secured Bonds comprising £300.0 million Class A 6.125 per cent. Bonds with scheduled and legal 
maturities of 2026 and 2028 respectively, £300.0 million Class A 6.5 per cent. Bonds with scheduled and 
legal maturities of 2041 and 2043 respectively, £300.0 million Class A 5.25 per cent. Bonds with scheduled 
and legal maturities of 2024 and 2026 respectively and £300.0 million Class A 5.75 per cent. Bonds with 
scheduled and legal maturities of 2037 and 2039 respectively.  
 
On 27 March 2014, Gatwick Funding Limited, issued a further £350.0 million of publicly listed fixed rate 
secured bonds comprising £350 million Class A 4.625 per cent. Bonds with scheduled and legal maturities of 
2034 and 2036 respectively. As at 31 March 2014, total bond debt was £1,550.0 million.  
 
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the average interest rate payable on borrowings was 5.87% p.a. 
(2013: 5.78% p.a.). 
 
The Company regularly prepares long-term cash flow forecasts to test the sufficiency of its financing facilities 
to meet its funding requirements. The Directors consider that the current level of credit facilities is sufficient 
to meet its present forecast funding requirements and provides the Company with appropriate headroom.  
 
Further information on the financing structure is included in note 20 of the financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



GATWICK AIRPORT LIMITED 
 

 12 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 

Operational performance 
 

The year under review saw significant progress across a wide range of important matters for the Airport. This 
included another year of continued passenger satisfaction, as well as delivering against the Capital 
Investment Plan.  
 
As part of the economic regulation of Gatwick, the Q5 price control incorporates the Service Quality Regime 
(“SQR”). The SQR sets stretching standards for a variety of measures impacting the passenger experience, 
from security queuing times to the availability of terminal and airfield assets, ensuring Gatwick is constantly 
focused on the performance in these key areas. The scheme also incorporates the results of a passenger 
survey, the Quality of Service Monitor (“QSM”), which provides a measure of passenger satisfaction with 
certain airport services and facilities (cleanliness, wayfinding, flight information, and departure lounge seat 
availability). Under this regime, if service standards are not met for a number of aspects of the Airport’s 
facilities and services for passengers and airlines, Gatwick pays rebates of airport charges to airlines. When 
targets are exceeded in both terminals on the limited number of eligible elements, bonuses are earned.  
 
As part of the Company’s contracts with airlines and its commitments framework from 1 April 2014, the 
Company has committed to maintaining the same service quality commitments with some refinements and 
the addition of several metrics associated with the performance of the Airport’s baggage handling system. As 
in Q5, the Company’s potential penalties under the regime amount to seven percent of aeronautical charges, 
however the Company is unable to earn any bonuses for exceeding standards.  
  
Gatwick reports its performance against the SQR (including QSM) targets on a monthly basis on its website. 
  
The Company uses, amongst other measures, total SQR targets passed, security queuing, overall QSM 
score, and on time departure performance, to monitor whether it is delivering the best passenger experience. 
 
 
Service Quality 
 

The Company achieved 99% of its SQR targets during the year ended 31 March 2014 compared to 100% in 
the prior year.  
 

 
 
On 24 December 2013, severe flooding in the vicinity of Gatwick Airport resulted in the failure of electricity 
distribution to areas of the airfield and North Terminal. During this time train services to and from Gatwick 
and road networks were also severely affected by the weather. As a result of disruption caused, 72 of the 
260 scheduled departures were cancelled which significantly impacted air transport movement and 
passenger numbers on 24 December 2013. As a consequence, the Airport failed 4 out of a possible 35 
measures, contributing almost half of the total measures failed over the three years since April 2011.  
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Service Quality (continued) 
 
In order to prevent such failings in future, the Company commissioned an investigation led by David 
McMillian to identify potential areas of weakness and recommend improvements to the operational resilience 
of the Airport. The report was published on 26 February 2014 and included 27 recommendations which the 
Company has committed to implement.  
 
In relation to security queuing, the Company achieved its SQR targets for the fourth consecutive year, with 
both terminals surpassing the target for security queue times of less than five minutes for 95% of the time. 
Compared to prior year both terminals North and South showed continued outstanding performance, 
achieving 97.3% and 96.7% respectively (2013: 97.4% and 98.0%). The following graph shows the 
percentage of Gatwick’s passengers that queued at security for less than five minutes during each month of 
Q5 to date: 
 

 
 

 

Passenger satisfaction 
 

Gatwick’s QSM is an on-going customer service survey conducted amongst a cross-section of departing and 
arriving passengers by the Company’s market research team. Passengers are asked to rate their experience 
of certain services and facilities at Gatwick. A QSM service quality score is calculated following a CAA 
formula and published each month. Gatwick’s overall QSM score was a 4.22 in 2014 compared to 4.23 in 
2013 (5 = excellent; 1 = poor).  The following chart shows Gatwick’s improving performance throughout Q5: 
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Airfield performance 
 

On time departure of a flight is of paramount importance to Gatwick as it has an impact on passengers and 
subsequent flights. During the year ended 31 March 2014, 77.0% (2013: 76.7%) of flights departed on time 
(measured as flights departing within +/- 15 minutes of the scheduled time of departure). Gatwick continues 
to work with its airline partners and NATS to address on-time departure performance to achieve the 80% 
target.  
  

 
 
 
 

Future Developments 
 
For planning purposes the Company is currently projecting 38.0 million passengers to travel through Gatwick 
during the year ended 31 March 2015, a 5.6% increase on the prior year (actual for year ended 31 March 
2014: 35.9 million).  
 
From 1 April 2014, the Company is operating under the Contracts and Commitments framework, under 
which the gross increase in allowable yield is RPI+1% with the blended increase being RPI+0%. In addition 
to the rates noted above and in the license granted by the CAA, the Company is cognisant of the “fair price” 
determined by the CAA of RPI-1.6% included within the monitoring framework.  

easyJet agreement to acquire Flybe slots at Gatwick 

In May 2013, easyJet plc completed an agreement with Flybe Group plc to acquire 25 pairs of arrival and 
departure slots at Gatwick for a total consideration of £20.0 million. The slots will transfer from April 2014 and 
will allow easyJet to provide additional frequencies on popular existing routes from Gatwick as well as add 
new destinations across the UK and Europe. This acquisition is expected to be a significant factor in the 
forecast growth in passenger numbers as these slots are expected to be utilised by larger and fuller planes.  
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
The Company produced a robust financial performance despite the enduring challenges of subdued 
economic growth and continued pressure on consumer and business confidence in the Eurozone. 
  
 
Turnover 
 
In the year to 31 March 2014, the Company’s turnover increased as a result of the traffic upsides impacting 
aeronautical, retail and car parking income.  
 

  Year ended  
31 March 2014  

Year ended  
31 March 2013  

  £m  £m  

    
Aeronautical income  317.4  285.8  
Retail income  135.1  123.2  
Car parking income  65.6  58.1  
Property income  25.7  25.7  
Operational facilities and utilities income  27.3  25.4  
Other income  22.6  20.7  

Total turnover  593.7  538.9  

 
 
Aeronautical income  
 
Aeronautical income is driven by both passenger traffic and the level of airport charges. Airport charges are 
determined by reference to the CAA’s regulatory formula which sets the opening aeronautical yield 
(aeronautical income per passenger) and the maximum growth in the aeronautical yield for Gatwick for Q5 at 
RPI+2% for the five years to 31 March 2013 and at RPI-0.5% for the year ending 31 March 2014. 
 
The actual allowable yield in the year ended 31 March 2014 increased to £8.854 from £8.128, a gain of 
8.9%. This year on year change is above that implied by the RPI-0.5% allowance due to a significant 
downward adjustment to the allowable yield in the year ended 31 March 2013 as a result of a significant 
capital expenditure trigger payment. This yield increase coupled with a 4.8% increase in passengers in the 
current year, when adjusted for the impact of under and over recoveries in both the current and prior years, 
led to an increase of 11.1% in aeronautical income. 
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Retail income 
 
Retail income increased by £11.9 million or 9.7% during the year ended 31 March 2014 compared to a 4.8% 
increase in passengers. Net retail income per passenger is calculated as follows:  
 

  Year ended  
31 March 2014  

Year ended  
31 March 2013  

  £m  £m  

    
Retail income    
Duty and tax-free  47.3  44.7  
Specialist shops  32.5  29.8  
Catering  21.8  20.3  
Bureau de change  19.5  16.8  
Other retail  14.0  11.6  

  135.1  123.2  
Less: retail expenditure  (1.7) (1.1) 

Net retail income  133.4  122.1  
 
Passengers (m) 
  

35.9  
  

34.2  
  

Net retail income per passenger  £3.72 £3.57 

 
Net retail income per passenger increased by £0.15 or 4.2% year-on-year to £3.72 (2013: £3.57) with the 
key contributory factors explained below.  
 
The last year has seen much progress in the development of retail in the South Terminal. In the South 
Terminal the World of Duty Free Group walk-through store was open for a full year of trading. This, coupled 
with strong performance from the North Terminal Duty Free stores, has resulted in growth compared to prior 
year and increased retail income per passenger.  
 
The Specialist Shop category was favourably impacted throughout the year by new outlets opening as the 
Capital Investment Programme works in the South Terminal were completed, and by modernisations in the 
North Terminal. New shops opened in two phases (July and December 2013) to complete the retail 
development project in the South Terminal. These delivered an increased selection of stores for passengers 
and provide the opportunity for further growth in this category. The new Harrods department store opened in 
the South Terminal in July 2013. 
 
In Catering the redevelopment and expansion of the award winning Red Lion and the introduction of 
Comptoir Libanais in the North Terminal has led to a rise in income per passenger, adding to the mix of 
brands and passenger experience.  
 
The Bureau de Change sector has improved performance year on year as the Company has been operating 
for a full year under the new pan - Airport agreement with Moneycorp the single operator. 
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Car parking income 
 
Net car parking income increased by 16.6% during the year ended 31 March 2014. Net car parking income 
per passenger is calculated as follows: 
 

  Year ended  
31 March 2014  

Year ended  
31 March 2013  

  £m  £m  

    
Car parking income  65.6  58.1  
Less: car parking expenditure  (17.1) (16.5) 

Net car parking income  48.5  41.6  
 
Passengers (m) 
  

35.9  
  

34.2  
  

Net car parking income per passenger  £1.35 £1.22 

 
Net car parking income per passenger increased by £0.13 (10.6%) in the year ended 31 March 2014.  The 
valet product continued to drive increased sales via pre-book channels including the growing park and stay 
market. The Company employed more dynamic pricing strategies during the year ended 31 March 2014 
enabling it to improve its yield.  Changes to the forecourt and the introduction of the approved meet and 
greet operators scheme also increased revenue. Costs rose marginally as a result of the increased 
operation.   
 
 
Other income categories 
 
Other income categories (i.e. excluding aeronautical, retail or car parking) increased by £3.9 million to £75.7 
million in 2014 (2013: £71.8 million). Operational facilities and utilities income increased by £1.9 million, 
largely due to a change in the pricing structure of check-in and baggage recharges and utilities income. 
Property income remained consistent at £25.7 million in 2014 (2013: £25.7 million).  
 
 
Income per passenger 
 
Income per passenger has increased by 4.9% from £15.76 to £16.54 as a result of the increase in 
aeronautical yield and improved commercial performance across all areas as discussed above.  
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Operating costs  
 
Operating costs have increased by £23.8 million or 5.6% to £446.3 million in 2014 (2013: £422.5 million), with 
£15.5 million of the increase reflecting higher staff costs.  
 

  Year ended  
31 March 2014  

Year ended  
31 March 2013  

  £m  £m  

    
Staff costs  164.6  149.1  
Retail expenditure  1.7  1.1  
Car parking expenditure  17.1  16.5  
Maintenance and IT expenditure  36.7  37.1  
Utility costs  27.4  27.6  
Rent and rates  28.4  28.2  
General expenses  58.4  52.2  
Depreciation  112.4  110.7  

Total operating costs   446.7  422.5  

 
Staff costs increased £15.5 million or 10.4% for the year ended 31 March 2014, reflecting the 3.5% increase 
in staff numbers, the 2% annual pay increase awarded to staff, improvements in year on year business 
performance resulting in higher bonus payments and a 2% increase in pension costs due to financial market 
movements. The increase in staff costs associated with the capital expenditure programme is offset by the 
subsequent capitalisation of these costs, which appears as part of general expenses. Overall, total staff 
costs capitalised were £22.5 million in 2014 (2013: £22.1 million).  
 
Average full-time equivalent (“FTE”) employee numbers increased from 2,371 in 2013 to 2,454 in 2014. 
Average operational FTE employees rose from 2,070 to 2,105 during the year, and non-operational FTE 
employees increased from 301 to 349. The rise in operational staff was driven by the increased operational 
requirements due to increased passenger numbers, whilst the increase in non-operational employees was as 
a result of the increased requirements in relation to the submissions to the Airports Commission and the 
CAA.    
 
Maintenance and information technology (“IT”) expenditure has decreased largely due to a reduction in de-
icing costs as a result of the mild winter during the year.  
 
Utility costs have decreased due to decreases in both the volume and unit cost of utilities consumed. These 
decreases have been offset by upgrades to the distribution network at the Airport, which is owned by a third 
party, but whose costs are contributed to by the Company.  
 
Rent and rates are higher due to the increase in the rateable value of the Company’s premises following the 
reintroduction of properties to rateable status on completion of capital developments.  
 
A significant factor in the increase of general expenses was the increase in professional consultants and 
marketing costs as a result of the ongoing Airports Commission process and the additional submissions to 
the CAA in relation to the future regulatory regime.  
 
The depreciation charge increased as a result of significant fixed asset additions in the current and prior 
years as the Q5 capital investment programme completed.  
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Operating profit 
 
Operating profit increased by £26.7 million to £143.1 million in 2014 (2013: £116.4 million). The increase in 
turnover is largely down to the 4.8% increase in passengers and the increase in the allowable aeronautical 
yield. Operating costs increased due to increases in staff costs, depreciation and maintenance expenditure, 
which were offset by the reduction in utilities charges and the capitalisation of staff costs.  
 
 
 
EBITDA  
 
Reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit: 
 

  Year ended  
31 March 2014  

Year ended  
31 March 2013  

  £m  £m  

    
Operating profit before exceptional items   147.0  116.4  
Add back: depreciation  112.4  110.7  

EBITDA   259.4  227.1  

 
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) increased £32.3 million or 14.2% to 
£259.4 million in 2014 (2013: £227.1 million). This increase is driven by the £54.8 million increase in 
turnover, largely due to the increase in aeronautical income, offset by the increases in staff costs and general 
expenditure.  
 
 
Going concern 
 
The Company’s net current liability position has increased to £44.5 million (2013: £17.7 million).  
 
All the Company’s financial covenants (see below) have been met for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 
are forecast to be met for the years ending 31 March 2015, 2016 and 2017. 
 
Based on the availability of undrawn committed borrowing facilities, and as further detailed in note 1 of the 
financial statements, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will continue as a going 
concern and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on that basis. 
 
 
Senior RAR and Senior ICR 
 
The maximum net indebtedness to the total regulatory asset base (“Senior RAR”) and minimum interest 
cover ratio (“Senior ICR”) are the Company’s financial covenants that govern the Company’s ability to draw 
new loans under the ACF Agreement. As at 31 March 2014, the Company’s Senior RAR ratio was 0.64 
(2013: 0.62). The Senior ICR for the year ended 31 March 2014 was 3.15 (2013: 2.88). 



GATWICK AIRPORT LIMITED 
 

 20 

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued) 
 
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
The following are the key performance indicators (“KPIs”) that the Company’s Executive Management Board 
and Board of Directors use to monitor the performance of the Company. They are detailed throughout the 
Strategic Report:  

 passengers and air transport movements;  

 passengers per air transport movement and load factors;  

 overall Service Quality Regime (“SQR”) and security queuing; 

 overall Quality of Service Monitor (“QSM”);  

 on-time departures; 

 net retail income per passenger;  

 net car parking income per passenger;  

 income per passenger;  

 EBITDA pre-exceptional items;  

 loss time injury (“LTI”) rates;  

 absenteeism per employee;  

 net indebtedness to total RAB (“Senior RAR”);  

 interest cover ratio (“Senior ICR”); and  

 regulatory asset base (“RAB”). 
 
 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Risk management is a central element of the Company’s strategic decisions and operations. The Company 

is committed to implementing appropriate strategies and processes that identify, analyse and manage the 

risks associated with the organisation in order to minimise the frequency and impact of undesired and 

unexpected events on the Company’s objectives, while enabling it to optimise its business opportunities. 

 

The principal aim of the risk management strategy is to embed the awareness of risk at all levels of the 

organisation, in such a way that ensures all significant business decisions are risk-informed. Particular 

emphasis is given to safety and security, environmental, commercial, financial, reputational and legal risks. 

 

A key element of the risk management process is the risk profiling methodology. This determines the threats 

to the achievement of business objectives and day-to-day operations in terms of likelihood and consequence 

at both inherent and residual level, after taking account of mitigating and controlling actions. Details are 

maintained in a hierarchy of risk registers used as the basis for regular reviews of risk management by the 

Audit and Governance Committee.  

 
The risk management process is also aimed at defining and implementing clear accountabilities, processes 
and reporting formats that deliver efficient and effective management assurance to the Board of Directors to 
ensure statutory compliance and protect and enhance our reputation, while supporting business units to 
successfully manage their operations and properly embed risk management. The operation of the process 
and the individual registers are subject to review by the Company’s Business Assurance function, to provide 
independent assurance to the Audit and Governance Committee and Board of Directors that the controls put 
in place to mitigate risks are working effectively.  
 
The Audit and Governance Committee was established to provide, amongst other things, independent 
oversight of the risk management of the Company.  
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The principal corporate risks as identified by the Board of Directors are as follows:  
 
 
Safety and security risks  
 
The Company mitigates safety and security risks by adopting and enforcing rigorous policies and 
procedures supported by professional training and by investment in leading-edge security technology. The 
Company works closely with government agencies, the police and the Armed Forces to match security 
measures to a level commensurate with the current raised threat environment.  
 
Furthermore the Company has implemented a health and safety management system to mitigate this risk. 
The system incorporates the setting of standards and targets, monitoring performance, and putting plans in 
place for improving performance. 
 
Assurance over safety and security risks is provided through management reporting processes and a 
specialist compliance audit function. 
 
The Company has implemented robust controls to manage the risks associated with works undertaken by 
contractors. This includes establishing a contractor support centre which manages all aspects of contractor 
activities including induction training, issuing permits and undertaking audits. This new function is designed 
to provide a consistent experience for all contractors ranging from retail to construction. In addition, the 
Company has implemented new controls and systems to ensure that the appropriate measures are in place 
during the tender phase of projects. 
 
The CAA aerodrome standards department visit each aerodrome periodically as part of their audit/inspection 
programme. The CAA inspectors assess compliance with the requirements of CAP168 licencing of aerodromes, 
audit the aerodrome’s management safety and assess the competence of those responsible for safety.  
 
The last major audit carried out at Gatwick was in October 2010. During that audit the inspectors found no 
category 1 or 2 non-compliance. An interim audit by the CAA in May 2013 again found no category 1 or 2 non-
compliance. 
 
 
Regulatory environment, legal and reputational risks 
 
CAA regulation 
 
The Company’s operations are subject to regulatory review by the CAA, with the most recent review 
completed in February 2014. The risk of an adverse outcome from the review was mitigated as far as 
possible by a dedicated project team which ensured full compliance with formal regulatory requirements, 
established a sound relationship with the CAA and advised the Company’s management and Board of 
Directors on regulatory matters. Regulation is represented on the Company’s Executive Management Board 
by a Strategy and Regulation Director. 
 
An important part of the regulatory framework is the Company’s involvement in continuous dialogue with the 
airlines that operate at Gatwick. In order to mitigate the risk of adverse airline relations, airlines have been 
invited to participate at all stages of the Capital Investment Plan including steering and working groups, with 
the Company pro-actively disclosing information to these groups. 
 
To facilitate constructive engagement in relation to any regulation beyond the end of Q5, the Company 
provided to the airlines operating at Gatwick and the CAA its initial Business Plan for the period beyond Q5. 
The Company engaged with airlines throughout the calendar year 2012 on the contents of its Business 
Plan.  The outputs of the engagement were used, as appropriate, to inform the revised Business Plan, 
submitted to the CAA in January 2013. The revised Business Plan, was used by the CAA, as appropriate, to 
inform its proposals and decisions for economic regulation at Gatwick. 
 
The UK Government introduced the Civil Aviation Bill (“the Bill”) into Parliament to reform the framework for 
the economic regulation of airports. The Bill achieved Royal Assent in December 2012 (“The Civil Aviation 
Act 2012”).  
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CAA regulation (continued)  
 
In 2011 the CAA extended Q5 by an extra year, thereby taking it to 31 March 2014. This followed 
agreement between the Company and the airlines operating at Gatwick to limit the increase in aeronautical 
charges to RPI-0.5% for the year ending 31 March 2014. As part of the extension, the Company agreed the 
capital expenditure and associated triggers, covering 60 per cent. of the forecast capital expenditure, that 
will apply in the year ended 31 March 2014.  
 
The Company ensured ongoing compliance with all Q5 regulatory requirements and participated in ad hoc 
CAA reviews. The process and the state of Q5 compliance was managed by formal reporting to the 
Company’s Executive Management Board.   
 
 
Competition rules 
 
The penalties for failing to comply with the 1998 Competition Act and relevant EU law are recognised as 
risks to be managed within the Company, given its position in certain markets. Clear policy direction, which 
includes compulsory awareness training and close support from the internal legal department, is in place to 
mitigate this risk. 
 
 
Permission to grow 
 
The existing local authority planning agreement envisages passenger traffic growing to around 40 million 
per annum at Gatwick. Failure to secure specific planning permissions would lead to the Company having 
insufficient capacity to meet the expected demands of the industry resulting in increased congestion and 
declining passenger service. The Company mitigates this risk through extensive consultation with 
community groups and authorities at a local level and active participation in Government consultations and 
other advisory groups. The Aviation White Paper “The Future of Air Transport” (“the White Paper”) was 
published in December 2003 and clarified the Government’s policies regarding airport expansion for the 
whole of the country. It emphasised the need for airport operators to invest in delivering new capacity as 
well as maximising the use of existing capacity. 
 
Shortly after the current UK Coalition Government came into power in May 2010 it indicated that it would not 
support any new runway development in the South East of England, ruling out any proposals for new 
runways at Heathrow, Stansted and Gatwick. More recently, the Government has been considering the 
development of aviation policy in the UK. In September 2012 the Government established the Airports 
Commission.  In February 2013 the Company formally submitted a letter of intent to the Airports Commission 
confirming the development of options for the expansion of Gatwick Airport and in July 2013 submitted its 
proposal for providing additional runway capacity in the longer term.  The Airports Commission reported to 
the Government in December 2013 concluding that there is a need for 1 net additional runway to be in 
operation in the south east by 2030.  The Airports Commission included the provision of a second runway at 
Gatwick as one of three short-listed options for the provision of additional airport capacity.  From December 
2013 to May 2014 the Company has been developing the scheme and submitted its updated scheme design 
to the Airports Commission on 14 May 2014.   
 
The Airports Commission will consult in the autumn 2014 on its evaluation of the short listed options at 
Gatwick and Heathrow for new runway capacity.  This will be followed by a recommendation to Government 
in the summer 2015 on the location of the next runway and its recommendation(s) for ensuring that the need 
is met as expeditiously as practicable within the required timescale.   The Company is and will continue to 
play an active role in this process and the work of the Airports Commission to help shape the policy 
environment in support of its strategy, to mitigate risks. 
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Environment 
 
Environmental risks need to be mitigated as they have the potential to impact the Company’s reputation and 
licence to operate and to grow, as well as the environment. The Company mitigates these risks at a number 
of levels including the implementation of an environmental management system, which incorporates a legal 
register to understand what legislation applies to the business objectives and targets around significant 
environmental impacts; monitoring performance against targets; internal audit; training programmes; and 
the influencing of third parties on site to improve their performance. The Company works proactively with 
stakeholders to ensure that it effectively manages the challenges posed to the environment by the Airport’s 
operation. 
 
 
Noise management 
 
The Company has listened to the noise concerns of the local community and has acted to be more effective 
in this area over the last four years. Noise complaints and aircraft noise compliance issues are managed 
through the Flight Performance Team. This team reports to the Director of Corporate Affairs and 
Sustainability to improve communication with local communities. Noise complaints are reported on a 
quarterly and annual basis and the team continues to engage with the local community.   

 
All this work is underpinned by the Company’s European Noise Directive Action Plan which has been 
endorsed by the Secretary of State for Transport. As the Company delivers against these actions through 
until 2015 they will create the foundations for the Airport to become a leader in this field.  
 
The Environmental Noise Directive Noise Action Plan was revised in 2013 and is currently awaiting adoption 
by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and rural Affairs. 
 
Through 2013 and 2014 the Airport conducted one of the largest airspace change consultations ever seen in 
the UK, asking communities around the airport their views on changing arrival and departure flight paths to 
reduce noise and aircraft fuel burn.  This work is part of the larger UK Future Airspace Strategy (“FAS”) and 
will see Gatwick at the forefront of world airspace design by the end of 2015. 
 
In 2014 the Airport also held our second public noise conference and launched a new domestic noise 
insulation scheme covering over 1,000 additional homes, increasing the area covered by over 25Km

2
. 

 
 
Capital projects 
 
The Company recognises that failure to control key capital project costs and delivery could damage its 
financial standing and reputation. The Company mitigates this risk through adherence to a rigorous project 
process, and by systems of project reviews before approval, during construction and after project 
completion.   
 
 
Changes in demand 
 
The risk of unanticipated long-term changes in passenger demand for air travel could lead to misaligned 
operational capacity within the Airport. Since it is not possible to identify the timing or period of such an 
effect, the Company carries out evaluations through a series of scenario planning exercises.  
 
Under the contracts and commitments framework from 1 April 2014, the Company carries the financial risk 
from a reduction in passenger volume during the seven year period of the framework. The framework 
requires Gatwick to limit its maximum average revenue yield over the next seven years, based on published 
prices at RPI+1.0% per year, and average prices (taking into account bilateral contracts) at RPI+0.0% per 
year (i.e. the “blended price”). The CAA has also set out its view of the “fair price” over a five year period of 
RPI-1.6% per year. The “blended price” is based on the inclusion of airline discounts which are defined, in 
part, by committed passenger volumes. The Airport has the ability to alter prices by up to RPI+10% in any 
year to mitigate the impact of any reduction in passenger demand subject to the requirements set out above 
to maintain average prices over the seven year period of the framework.   
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Industrial relations 

 

Industrial action by key groups of employees that affects critical services or curtails operations could have 

potentially adverse financial and/or reputational impacts on the Company. The Company recognises three 

trade unions – Unite, Prospect, and PCS. Training is in place with these trade unions encouraging a 

constructive joint problem-solving approach. The Company has a range of formal consultative bodies that 

discuss pay, conditions of employment, and business issues with the recognised trade unions. Increasing 

emphasis has been placed on resolving issues at a departmental level thereby avoiding escalation. A 

revised term of reference has been agreed for the Gatwick Joint Committee, the highest consultative forum 

in the Company, which puts more focus on business strategy and performance. There are formal 

agreements designed to resolve disputes.  

 

Additionally there is the potential for adverse financial impacts in the event that industrial action is taken 

within suppliers of key services (e.g. air traffic controllers) or by employees of key clients (e.g. airlines).  
 
 
Financial risk management 
 
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise external borrowings and derivatives. The Company, its 
parent entity Ivy Holdco Limited and its subsidiary Gatwick Funding Limited are collectively referred to in this 
Strategic Report and the financial statements as “the Ivy Holdco Group” 
 
The Company’s financial risk management objectives are aligned with the Ivy Holdco Group. The Ivy Holdco 
Group is the level at which financial risks for the Company are managed. The treasury policies of the Ivy 
Holdco Group are set out below. 
 
The Board of Directors approves prudent treasury policies for the Ivy Holdco Group and delegates certain 
responsibilities to senior management who directly control day-to-day treasury operations. The treasury 
function is not permitted to speculate in financial instruments. Its purpose is to identify, mitigate and hedge 
treasury related financial risks inherent in the Ivy Holdco Group’s business operations and funding. To 
achieve this, the Ivy Holdco Group enters into interest rate and index-linked swaps to protect against interest 
rate and inflation risks. 
 
The primary treasury related financial risks faced by the Ivy Holdco Group are: 
 
(a) Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk 
 

The Ivy Holdco Group maintains a mix of fixed and floating rate debt. As at 31 March 2014, fixed rate 
debt after hedging with derivatives represented 102.1% (2013: 95.9%) of the Ivy Holdco Group’s 
total external nominal debt. 
 
The Ivy Holdco Group mitigates the risk of mismatch between the Airport’s regulatory asset base 
and aeronautical income, which are directly linked to changes in the retail price index, and nominal 
debt and interest payments, by the use of inflation linked derivatives. As at 31 March 2014, the 
nominal amount of index-linked derivatives equated to 25.5% (2013: 27.7%) of the Ivy Holdco 
Group’s external debt.  
 

(b) Funding and Liquidity Risk 
 

The Ivy Holdco Group has established a multicurrency programme for the issuance of bond debt in 
addition to bank debt and a liquidity facility. To ensure continuity of funding and flexibility, debt 
maturities are spread over a range of dates, thereby ensuring that the Ivy Holdco Group is not 
exposed to excessive refinancing risk in any one year. 
 
The Ivy Holdco Group has positive cash flows before capital expenditure. The Ivy Holdco Group had 
cash flows from operations of £274.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: £244.7 
million). As at 31 March 2014, cash at bank was £13.4 million (2013: £0.5 million), undrawn 
headroom under bank revolving facilities was £300.0 million (2013: £228.0 million) and undrawn 
headroom under the liquidity facility was £100.0 million (2013: £100.0 million). 
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Financial risk management (continued) 
 

(b) Funding and Liquidity Risk (continued) 
 
Covenants under the financing arrangements are monitored and forecast on an ongoing basis with 
formal testing reported to the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Executive Management 
Board, along with all investors. The Ivy Holdco Group continues to comply with all borrowing 
obligations and financial covenants, and forecasts to do so for at least the next three years from the 
balance sheet date. 
 

(c) Credit Risk 
 

The Ivy Holdco Group’s exposure to credit-related losses, in the event of non-performance by 
counterparties to financial instruments, is mitigated by limiting exposure to any one party or 
instrument.  

  
 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Sustainability management 
 
The Company develops strategies, policies and targets that pave the way for sustainable growth. 
 
The Company’s sustainability approach is built into its governance framework and is led by the Executive 
Management Board. The Company’s aim is to: ensure that the right systems are in place to set strategy and 
policies; determine and deliver appropriate plans; and to manage the business safely and responsibly. 
 
The Company works closely with its local authorities, having signed a section 106 (“s106”) legal agreement 
with the West Sussex County Council and Crawley Borough Council in December 2008. The legal 
agreement provides the framework for the Company’s approach on social, environmental and economic 
matters. It defines how Gatwick’s operation, growth and environmental impacts will be managed and ensures 
the Company’s wider sustainability strategy is aligned with key local authority partners. It is considered as a 
best practice case in the UK by external stakeholders. The agreement underpins the important relationship 
between the Company and its local authorities who have responsibilities for planning, environmental 
management and highways. Performance against the legal agreement is communicated through the 
Sustainability Performance Review and to the Company’s Consultative Committee (“GATCOM”). In 2014, the 
Company will begin high level discussions with our local authorities to renew this agreement to take the 
Airport beyond 2015. 
 
The Company continues to build and maintain strong relationships with stakeholders including the 
Government, airlines, business partners, passengers and employees. Working closely with these 
stakeholders ensures that the Company can influence and shape future policy and decisions that may affect 
Gatwick and the aviation industry, and also to identify joint working opportunities to promote best practice. 
 
A new Master Plan was published in July 2012 following a lengthy consultation process. It outlines the 
Company’s long term ambitions for growth and development for Gatwick to 2020 and beyond. To ensure that 
all levels of interest and expertise were catered for, and that the audience was as wide as possible, the 
Company undertook both a public presentation and more detailed engagement with stakeholders.  
 
Nearly 1,700 members of the public attended exhibitions, 132 stakeholders and members of the public 
participated in 19 consultative workshops and a further 350 people provided written or telephone feedback 
on the Company’s proposals. The Company has noted a substantial degree of support for the Airports 
development and growth plans and a report summarising the public and community consultation has been 
published on the Company’s website.  
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Our Decade of Change progress 
 
In 2010 the Company published its Decade of Change sustainability strategy. This outlined the following 
sustainability priorities: 

 to enable Gatwick to be the airport of choice for our passengers and customers; 

 to ensure the safety and security of our passengers, partners and employees; 

 to generate national and regional economic wealth, connectivity, increased airport catchment and 
employment; 

 to reduce adverse impacts to the environment; 

 to build and maintain constructive relationships with stakeholders; and 

 to recognise the value of our employees, partners and communities. 
 
Four years on from launching the strategy the Company has made significant progress and identified the 
areas where focus is necessary. Overall the Company wants to continue the work it has already begun with 
its partners by developing stronger relationships that ensure the Company continues to deliver against our 
Decade of Change targets while helping our partners to achieve their goals at the same time. This progress 
is detailed in the Company’s Annual Sustainability Report published on the Company’s website.  
 
 
Sustainability performance 
 
The Company monitors its performance in a number of key sustainability areas and produces a 
comprehensive sustainability report on an annual basis. Full details of the Company’s sustainability approach 
and associated performance reporting can be found on the Company’s website. 
 
 
Health and safety 
 
Gatwick continued to implement its Environment, Health and Safety (“EH&S”) Destination Zero Programme, 
during the year ended 31 March 2014. This programme is designed to continually improve EH&S for 
employees and third parties with the ultimate goal of zero incidents. As part of this programme, Gatwick 
invested £1.0 million in implementing a new contractor support centre in June 2012 which is designed to 
strengthen contractor controls and includes a new permit to work system. Also as part of the Destination 
Zero Programme, Gatwick launched an Occupational Health and Well-being Strategy which involved in-
sourcing its occupational health service provision. 
 
A key success for the year ended 31 March 2014 has been ISO 14001 recertification, which was renewed as 
part of a three year auditing cycle. This will complement the OHSAS 18001 certification which the Company 
already holds. Both certifications demonstrate the Company's commitment to implementing robust systems 
and controls for managing EH&S risks, which are independently audited and verified for effectiveness. 
  
One of the key performance indicators which the Company uses to measure and drive improvement in EH&S 
performance is the reduction of lost time injuries (“LTI”) rates (LTI per 100,000 hours). In the year ended 31 
March 2014 the Company reported 40 employee LTIs at a LTI rate per 100,000 hours of 0.71 (2012: 44 LTIs 
at a rate of 0.83). This year-on-year decrease in the LTI rate has resulted largely from the Destination Zero 
programme improvements. 
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DEVELOPING OUR PEOPLE 
 

Having successfully achieved Investors in People accreditation in February 2013 we have set ourselves a 

new goal of attaining a position in the Sunday Times top 100 best companies to work for in 2016.  We had 

our initial assessment this year and were very pleased to be awarded 'One to Watch'.  We need to keep 

focused on improving leadership and communications across the organisation. 

 

During the year there has been much focus on improving the customer experience.  All frontline staff 

participated in a 'Turn it Up' programme that explored how as individuals and teams we can improve the 

passenger experience.  This was followed up by 'Turn it Up 2' which focused on the relationships in teams 

and what we can expect from each other. 

 

This year we have focussed on understanding and developing our internal talent pool.  We have identified a 

pool of 12 senior managers with potential for fast track development.  In addition we are identifying an 

external pool for operational leadership roles. 

 

All employees have personal objectives that are aligned to the business plan and have a bi-annual 

performance review.  Individual performance is assessed against a 9 box performance grid that covers both 

task and behaviours.  Individual performance ratings form the basis of awarding an element of performance 

bonus for all staff. 
 
 
Employee Relations 
 

The company recognises three trade unions which represent approximately 1,650 of its employees. 

Relationships with all three unions have historically been cordial with no instances of industrial action during 

the past 20 years.  A two-year pay deal has been negotiated and concluded in January 2014 for non-

managerial staff to cover the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2015.  These negotiations took over 12 

months to complete and involved five ballots and consultations with ACAS before agreement was reached.   

 

The first year includes a pay increase of 2% and a one off payment of £750 in lieu of an annual bonus.  The 

second year includes an increase of 2%, with the reinstatement of the annual performance bonus scheme.  

New starter rates were introduced across all frontline roles of up to 30% less.  We have already recruited 72 

new security officers on the new rates.  Senior managers received a comparable increase also linked to 

performance. 

 

The Company’s reward strategy is based on the principle of rewarding individual and team performance. The 

bonus scheme is based on individual performance and on the Company’s EBITDA performance.  
 
 
Attendance Management 
 

Attendance is constantly monitored against a clear policy framework.  The year saw attendance levels at 

rolling average days absenteeism per employee decrease to 8.1 days (2013: 9.5 days).  New occupational 

health arrangements are now in place which is enabling greater health monitoring and timely access. 
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Learning and Development 
 
The Company is committed to the development of its people. As part of an overall learning and development 
strategy, there has been a strong focus during the year on developing employees understanding of the 
Company’s strategy and on people leadership. A team of dedicated operational trainers are employed by the  
Company to deliver compliance and regulatory courses. All employees have performance objectives and 
personal development plans. All employees have attended a series of training events to reinforce the link 
between the Company’s ambition & strategy and its values and to embed a customer service culture across 
the business. 
 
 
Headcount 
 
During the year ended 31 March 2014 the Company had on average 2,454 FTE employees (2013: 2,371). 

Turnover of permanent employees during 2014 was 5.6% (2013: 5.6%) with 141 (2013: 135) people leaving 

the Company. Of these, 48.2% resigned, 20.6% retired, 31.2% were made redundant, dismissed or left 

under compromise agreements.  

 
Resourcing 
 

The Company actively recruits internally, promoting the development and progression of the Company’s 

employees. During the current year, the Company has focussed on improving its selection and recruitment 

processes both internally and externally. 

 

The Company has a range of equal opportunities policies in order to create and support a diverse workforce. 

It is the policy of the Company that no form of discrimination due to disability, race, sex or age should/will 

exist in the workplace.  

 

Applications for employment by disabled persons are welcomed and fully considered against the needs of 

the role. In the event of employees becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment 

with the Company continues and that appropriate reasonable adjustments and training are provided.  

 

In addition to our engineering scheme, an airport security apprenticeship scheme was implemented during 

the current year which has been successful in significantly improving employee retention rates in this area. 
 
 
 
By order of the Board 

 
 
Stewart Wingate 
Chief Executive Officer 

25 June 2014 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
The Directors present their report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014. 
 
 
 
OWNERSHIP 
 
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ivy Holdco Limited, a United Kingdom (“UK”) incorporated 
company, and is ultimately owned by a consortium through a number of UK and overseas holding companies 
and limited liability partnerships.  
 
Gatwick Airport Limited owns 100% of the share capital of Gatwick Funding Limited, a company incorporated 
in Jersey but resident in the UK for tax purposes. The primary purpose of Gatwick Funding Limited is to raise 
external funding and provide it to Gatwick Airport Limited. This is done through the issuance of external 
bonds and the use of external interest rate and index-linked derivatives, the terms of which are then 
replicated in a “back-to-back” agreement with Gatwick Airport Limited.  
 
Gatwick Airport Limited, its parent entity Ivy Holdco Limited and Gatwick Funding Limited are collectively 
referred to in this Directors’ Report and the financial statements as the “Ivy Holdco Group”.  
 
 
The consortium that ultimately owns the Company currently comprises the following parties:  

 

Global Infrastructure Partners, LP (“GIP 1”)
1    

41.95% 
The Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (“ADIA”)

2
     15.90% 

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”)
3
 12.78% 

National Pension Service of Korea (“NPS”)
4    

12.14% 
 Future Fund Board of Guardians (“Future Fund”)

5
   17.23% 

 
1
 Global Infrastructure Partners, LP (“GIP 1”) is a US$5.64 billion independent, specialist 

infrastructure fund that invests worldwide in infrastructure assets and businesses in both OECD 
and select emerging market countries. GIP 1 was founded in 2006 by former senior executives 
from Credit Suisse and the General Electric Company. GIP 1 targets investments in power and 
utilities, natural resources infrastructure, air transport infrastructure, seaports, freight railroad, 
water distribution and treatment and waste management. Global Infrastructure Management, 
LLC, the manager of GIP 1, has offices in New York and London with an affiliate in Sydney and 
portfolio operations headquarters in Stamford, Connecticut. 
 
2
 The Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (“ADIA”), established in 1976, is a globally diversified 

investment institution, whose sole mission is to invest funds on behalf of the Government of the 
Emirate of Abu Dhabi to make available the necessary financial resources to secure and 
maintain the welfare of the Emirate.  
 
3
 The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”) manages retirement 

benefits for more than 1.6 million public employees, retirees, and their families and more than 
3,000 employers in the state of California, United States of America. CalPERS also manages 
health benefits for more than 1.3 million members. The CalPERS fund invests in a range of 
asset classes, with a market value of approximately US$277 billion. 

 
4
 National Pension Service of Korea (“NPS”) is a public pension fund for the general public in 

Korea which has grown to 392 trillion won (US$369 billion), and is the fourth largest pension 
fund in the world. 
 
5
 Future Fund Board of Guardians ("Future Fund") is a financial asset fund established by the 

Future Fund Act 2006 to assist the Australian government meet the cost of public sector 
superannuation liabilities by delivering investment returns on contributions to the fund. The fund 
has approximately A$92 billion assets under management. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Company has two executive and nine non-executive directors. The following non-executive directors 
oversee the Company on behalf of the consortium:  
 

 Raphael Arndt; 

 Andrew Gillespie-Smith; 

 John McCarthy;     (appointed 25 September 2013) 

 Michael McGhee; and 

 William Woodburn. 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors who served during the year and up to the date of approval of these financial 
statements, except where otherwise stated, were as follows: 
 
Sir Roy McNulty (Non-executive Chairman) 
Sir Roy McNulty was appointed Chairman of Gatwick Airport Limited on 1 April 2013, having first joined the 
Board in April 2011 as a non-executive director. Sir Roy is Deputy Chairman of the Olympic Delivery Authority, 
Chairman of Norbrook Laboratories Limited  and a non-executive director of Monarch Group Limited.  
 
Sir Roy was previously Chairman of the CAA, the UK’s specialist aviation regulator, a post he held for eight 
years. Prior to this he was Executive Chairman of National Air Traffic Services Limited ("NATS") from May 1999 
to July 2001. Sir Roy was appointed by the former Secretary of State in February 2010 as Chairman to lead a 
special Rail Value for Money Study which reported in May 2011. Other previous posts include being Chief 
Executive and latterly Chairman of Short Brothers plc, the Belfast-based aerospace company now part of 
Bombardier Inc., President of the Society of British Aerospace Companies, Chairman of the former Department 
of Trade and Industry Aviation Committee, and Chairman of the Ilex Urban Regeneration Company in Northern 
Ireland. 
 
Stewart Wingate (Chief Executive Officer) 
Stewart is the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). Stewart was with BAA from 2004 until September 2009, first as 
Customer Services Director of Glasgow Airport, then as Chief Executive Officer of Budapest Airport and most 
recently as Managing Director of Stansted Airport. He is a Chartered Engineer and a Fellow of the Institute of 
Engineering and Technology. Stewart has a Masters in Business Administration with distinction and a first-class 

honours degree in electrical and electronic engineering. 
 

Nicholas Dunn (Chief Financial Officer) 
Nick was appointed Chief Financial Officer (CFO) in April 2010. Nick joined from Anglo American plc where he 
was General Manager, Corporate Finance. Prior to that, he worked for six years with Centrica plc in a number of 
senior finance roles including as Director of Group M&A, Finance Director for Centrica Energy and Finance 
Director for British Gas Business. Nick has more than ten years’ experience in investment banking, with the 
majority of this time specialising in the transportation and energy sectors. He has advised governments and 
private investors on the financing of airports and air traffic control and has managed airport acquisition, IPO and 
financing transactions in the UK and internationally. Nick holds a BEng (1st Class Honours) in Electronic 
Engineering from the University of Southampton. 
 
Raphael Arndt (Non-executive director, Future Fund representative) 
Raphael has been Head of Infrastructure and Timberland at Future Fund since 2007 with a particular focus on 
building and managing the Fund’s investments in these areas. He joined from Hastings Funds Management 
where he was an Investment Director responsible for managing successful infrastructure and timberland 
portfolios as well as leading infrastructure and timberland transactions.  
 
Raphael also has significant asset management experience in both sectors. Previously he was Policy Director at 
the Australian Council for Infrastructure Development (“AusCID”) and completed a Ph.D at Melbourne University 
which addressed “Efficient Risk Allocation in the Private Provision of Infrastructure”. Raphael has advised on 
infrastructure and capital works projects at the Victorian Department of Treasury and Finance. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) 
 
Andrew Gillespie-Smith (Non-executive director, GIP representative) 
Andrew joined Global Infrastructure Partners (“GIP”) in 2008 and led the M&A team for GIP in acquiring Gatwick 
Airport. Prior to joining GIP, Andrew was a Managing Director of the Investment Banking Department of Credit 
Suisse. He joined Credit Suisse in 1998 when BZW's corporate finance business was acquired by Credit Suisse. 
 
Andrew has advised clients on a broad range of corporate finance transactions including mergers and 
acquisitions, debt and equity financings. These transactions spanned airports, airlines and related businesses, 
air traffic control, shipping, coal and power generation sectors across Australia, Europe, Asia and the Americas. 
Prior to joining BZW, he qualified as a corporate lawyer at the London-based law firm Herbert Smith. 
 
James van Hoften (Non-executive director) 
James is a former senior vice president and partner of the Bechtel Corporation. He was Managing Director of the 
global airport design and construction business and was responsible for airport developments in the Middle East, 
Japan, and North and South America. In the early 1990s, he was the programme manager of the US$23 billion 
Hong Kong Airport Core Programme including the new Hong Kong Airport. Previously, James spent eight years 
as a NASA astronaut including two flights on the space shuttle and four space walks. James was a director of 
FlexLNG in London and is on the Board of Trustees of the University of California, Berkeley. 
 
Andrew Jurenko (Non-executive director) 
Andrew advised the consortium on the Gatwick acquisition and is a consultant to a number of property 
businesses. He was previously employed by BAA plc and was a member of BAA plc’s executive committee, as 
Managing Director of BAA International, where he led the acquisition of Budapest Airport. Andrew’s international 
experience also includes serving as CEO of Australia Pacific Airports Corporation Limited (“APAC”), as interim 
CEO of Melbourne Airport following its successful acquisition and as Managing Director of BAA Pacific Ltd in 
Hong Kong. 
 
In the UK, Andrew, was also Managing Director of BAA’s World Duty Free direct retailing arm, co-Chairman of 
BAA’s non-airport retail joint venture, McArthur Glen, and Managing Director and then Chairman of the 
commercial property company, BAA Lynton. 
 
Michael McGhee (Non-executive director, GIP representative) 
Michael is a transport partner of GIP and is based in London. He was a Managing Director of the Investment 
Banking Department of Credit Suisse and Head of the Global Transportation and Logistics Group since 1998. 
Previously he was head of BZW’s Global Transportation Group, since founding it in July 1990, and has advised 
governments on several privatisations in the transport sector globally. 
 
David McMillan (Non-executive director) 
David was appointed to the Board as a non-executive director on 1 April 2013. David is Chair of the Board of 
Governors of the Flight Safety Foundation. He was Director General of Eurocontrol, which co-ordinates air traffic 
across 40 European states, from 2008 to 2012. Before that he was UK Director General of Civil Aviation and 
spoke for Europe on environmental issues at the International Civil Aviation Organisation ("ICAO"). Earlier in his 
career, he led for Government on the establishment of the NATS PPP and was Secretary to the RUCATSE 
study on airport capacity in South East England.  
 
David started his career in the Diplomatic Service and is a fellow of both the Chartered Institute of Transport and 
the Royal Aeronautical Society. 
 
William Woodburn (Non-executive director, GIP representative) 
William is an operating partner of GIP and is based in New York City and Stamford, Connecticut. Before joining 
GIP, he was the president and CEO of GE Infrastructure and previously president and CEO of GE Specialty 
Materials. 
 
Prior to this, William was executive vice president and a member of the Office of the CEO at GE Capital, with 
oversight responsibilities for GE Capital Equipment Management businesses, including Americom, Fleet 
Service, Rail Services, TIP & Modular Space and Penske Truck Leasing. He served on the GE Capital Board in 
2000 and 2001 and oversaw GE Capital India, GE Capital Global Sourcing, GE Capital Container Finance and 
GE SeaCo JV. 
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John McCarthy (Non-executive director, ADIA representative) 
John McCarthy is Global Head of Infrastructure at Abu Dhabi Investment Authority. He is responsible for 
developing and implementing investment strategy for the infrastructure division and for overseeing all day-to-day 
activities within the infrastructure team. This includes managing ADIA's existing investment portfolio, as well as 
new transactions.  
 
With over 20 years’ experience in this sector, John joined ADIA from Deutsche Bank where he was Managing 
Director and Global Head of Infrastructure. Prior to that he worked at ABN AMRO and BXW in Australia. He 
holds a post graduate degree in finance and a BA in economics from Monash University, Melbourne. 
 
 
The following people also served as Directors during the year: 
 
Khadem Alremeithi resigned from the Board on 7 November 2013. 
 
 
Board committees 
 
There are two sub-committees of the Board of Directors: an Audit and Governance Committee, and a 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Audit and Governance Committee (Chairman, Andrew 
Gillespie-Smith) is responsible for the independent oversight of corporate governance, the system of internal 
control, risk management and the financial reporting processes of the Company. The Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (Chairman, Michael McGhee) is responsible for overseeing Board and Senior 
Management appointments, remuneration and succession planning. These committees meet at least twice 
per annum.  
 
 
Executive Management Board 
 
The Company also has an Executive Management Board which includes the Chief Executive Officer, the 
Chief Financial Officer and other members of senior management. The Executive Management Board meets 
monthly and is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company. In particular, the Executive 
Management Board has collective responsibility for assisting the Board of Directors in the performance of 
their duties for the Company including: 
 

 the development and implementation of strategy, operational plans and budgets; 

 the achievement of business plans and targets; 

 the assessment and control of risk; 

 ensuring compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and 

 the development and implementation of the Company’s ethics and business standards and health, 

safety, security and environmental policies and procedures.  
 
 
 
DIVIDENDS 
 
On 17 December 2013 the Directors declared and paid an interim dividend of 2.97p per share amounting to 
£10.0 million (2013: nil). The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2013: nil). 
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 
 
The Directors do not expect changes in the Company’s activities in the 12 months following the date of approval 
of these financial statements. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
A review of the Company’s financial risk management policies have been disclosed in the Strategic Report 
above.  
 
 
 
EMPLOYEES 
 
A review of the Company’s employment policies have been disclosed in the Strategic Report above.  
 
 
 
DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY 
 
The Company’s Articles of Association provide that, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, 
but without prejudice to any indemnity to which the person concerned might otherwise be entitled, every 
Director of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability incurred 
by him for negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will 

automatically be re-appointed as Auditors of the Company. 
 
 
 
By order of the Board 

 
 
Stewart Wingate 
Chief Executive Officer 

25 June 2014  
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and regulations. 
 
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law 
the Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the 
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. 
 
 In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to: 
 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 

that the Company will continue in business. 

 
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and 
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position 
of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the 
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from 
legislation in other jurisdictions. 
  
In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved, the following applies: 

 
(a) so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s 
auditors are unaware; and 
 
(b) he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of 
that information. 

 
 
By order of the Board 

 
Robert Herga 
Company Secretary 
25 June 2014 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GATWICK AIRPORT LIMITED  

 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Our opinion  
  
 In our opinion the financial statements, defined below: 

 give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of its profit and 
cash flows for the year then ended; 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 

This opinion is to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report. 

What we have audited 
 
The financial statements, which are prepared by Gatwick Airport Limited, comprise:  

 the balance sheet as at 31 March 2014; 

 the profit and loss account  and statement of total recognised gains and losses for the year then ended; 

 the cash flow statement for the year then ended; 

 the reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds for the year then ended; and 

 the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, 
for example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made 
assumptions and considered future events. 
 
What an audit of financial statements involves  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK 
& Ireland”)). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: 

 whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 

 the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and  

 the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Financial 
Statements to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any 
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 
 
 
OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 
 
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and  Directors’ Report for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GATWICK AIRPORT LIMITED 
 
OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT ON BY EXCEPTION 
 

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received 
 

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

 adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records. 

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. 
 
 
Directors’ remuneration 
 
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of 
directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this 
responsibility.  

 

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT 
 

Our responsibilities and those of the directors  
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 34, the directors are 
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view.  

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices 
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.  

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in 
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in 
giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom 
this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in 
writing. 

 

 
 
Graham Lambert (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors 
Gatwick 

25 June 2014 
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 

 
The notes on pages 41 to 70 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
 
All profits and losses recognised during the current and prior year are from continuing operations. 
 
There are no material differences between the profits/(losses) on ordinary activities before taxation and the 
retained profit/(loss) for the current and prior year and their historical cost equivalents. 
 
 
Historical cost profits and losses 
 
 

 

  
 

Note 

Year ended  
31 March  

2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
  £m  £m  

    
Turnover 4 593.7  538.9  
    
Operating costs  5 (446.7) (422.5) 
Operating costs – exceptional: other  7 (3.9) - 

Total operating costs  (450.6) (422.5) 
    

Operating profit before exceptional items  147.0  116.4  
Operating costs – exceptional: other  7 (3.9) - 

Operating profit  143.1  116.4  
    
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets  7 (5.5) (2.4) 
Net interest payable and similar charges – ordinary 9 (91.0) (93.2) 
Net interest receivable/(payable) and similar charges – 
exceptional 

6 39.2 (49.1) 

Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation  85.8 (28.3) 
    
Tax charge on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities 10 (28.3) (0.8) 

    
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 23 57.5 (29.1) 

  
 

Note 

Year ended  
31 March  

2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
  £m  £m  

    
Reported profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation  85.8 (28.3) 
Realisation of property revaluation  gains/(losses) from 
prior years 

23 1.6 (1.8) 

    

Historical cost profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before 
taxation 

 87.4 (30.1) 
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 

 
 
 
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
 

  
 

Note 

Year ended  
31 March  

2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
  £m  £m  
    
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 23 57.5  (29.1) 
Dividends paid 11 (10.0) -  

Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year  47.5  (29.1) 
Actuarial losses on pension scheme net of tax  (9.6) (12.9) 
Capital contribution  0.6  0.6  
Other net recognised gains relating to the year 23 62.3  27.7  

    
Net increase/(reduction) in shareholders’ funds  100.8  (13.7) 
    
Opening shareholders’ funds   315.0  328.7  

    
Closing shareholders’ funds  415.8  315.0  

 
The notes on pages 41 to 70 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
 
 

  
 

Note 

Year ended  
31 March  

2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
  £m  £m  
    
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 23 57.5  (29.1) 
Actuarial losses on pension scheme 23 (11.5) (16.8) 
Deferred tax allocated to actuarial losses 23 1.9  3.9  
Unrealised revaluation surplus 23 62.3  27.7  

    
Total recognised profit/(loss) relating to the year  110.2  (14.3) 
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BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31 March 2014 
 

  
Note 

31 March  
2014  

31 March  
2013  

  £m  £m  
    
FIXED ASSETS    
Tangible assets 14 2,309.6  2,160.4  

    
CURRENT ASSETS    
Stocks 15 3.6  3.3  
Debtors: due within one year 16 45.8  49.7  
Debtors: due after more than one year 16 17.0  45.9  
Cash at bank and in hand 17 13.4  0.5  

    
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  79.8  99.4  
    
CREDITORS: 
amounts falling due within one year 

 
18 (124.3) (117.1) 

    

    
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES  (44.5) (17.7) 

    
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES  2,265.1  2,142.7  
    
CREDITORS: 
amounts falling due after more than one year 

 
19 (1,631.2) (1,581.3) 

    
Provisions for liabilities 21 (198.9) (239.8) 

   
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION LIABILITY 435.0  321.6  
    
Pension liability 27 (19.2) (6.6) 
    

   
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION LIABILITY 415.8  315.0  

    
CAPITAL AND RESERVES    
Called up share capital 22 336.3  336.3  
Revaluation reserve 23 82.6  21.9  
Profit and loss reserve – deficit 23 (3.1) (43.2) 
    

    
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS  415.8  315.0  

 
The notes on pages 41 to 70 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
 
The financial statements of Gatwick Airport Limited (Company registration number: 1991018) were approved 
by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2014 and were signed on its behalf by: 
           

                                                                      
    
Stewart Wingate      Nicholas Dunn 
Chief Executive Officer     Chief Financial Officer 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 

 

Note 

Year ended  
31 March  

2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
    
Net cash inflow from operating activities  274.2  244.8  
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 24 (71.5) (68.8) 
Capital expenditure and financial investment 24 (199.0) (234.7) 
Equity dividends paid 11 (10.0) -  

Cash outflow before management of liquid resources 
and financing 

 
(6.3) (58.7) 

Financing 24 19.2  47.0  

    
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year 25 12.9  (11.7) 

    

Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities: 
  

Year ended  
31 March  

2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Operating profit 143.1  116.4  
Adjustments for:   
Depreciation 112.4  110.7  
Impairment of tangible fixed assets 3.9  -  
Decrease in stocks and debtors 4.4  12.6  
Increase in creditors 6.6  5.4  
Decrease in provisions -  (0.4) 
Increase in net pension liability 3.8  0.1  

   
Net cash inflow from operating activities 274.2  244.8  

 
The notes on pages 41 to 70 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
1. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
These financial statements are the financial statements of Gatwick Airport Limited (“the Company”) for the year 
ended 31 March 2014. The comparative year is the year ended 31 March 2013. These financial statements have 
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain tangible fixed 
assets, and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (“UK 
GAAP”) except as set out within the accounting policies note. 
 
The Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis which requires the Directors 
to have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. 
 
The Directors have reviewed the cash flow projections of the Company taking into account: 

 the forecast passenger numbers, revenue and operating cash flows from the underlying operations; 

 the forecast level of capital expenditure;  

 the Company’s funding structure and the facilities that are available to the Company (see note 20); and 

 the Company’s financial covenants. 
 
The Company’s net current liability position has increased during the year to £44.5 million (2013: £17.7 
million).  
 
All of the Company’s financial covenants (see note 20) have been met and are forecast to be met for the 
years ending 31 March 2015, 2016 and 2017. 
 
As a result of the review, having made appropriate enquiries of management and allowing for headroom to 
accommodate a reasonable downside scenario (including a fall in passenger numbers), the Directors have a 
reasonable expectation that sufficient funds are available to meet the Company’s funding requirement over a 
period of at least 12 months from the date of the approval of the financial statements. Accordingly the 
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will continue as a going concern, and the 
financial statements have been prepared on that basis. 
 
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ivy Holdco Limited and is included in the consolidated financial 
statements of Ivy Holdco Limited which are publicly available. Consequently, the Company has taken advantage 
of the exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements under the terms of section 400 of the 
Companies Act 2006. 
 
The financial statements were approved by the Directors on 25 June 2014. 
 
The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently throughout the current and prior 
year, are set out below. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
2.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
(a)  Ownership 
 
On 3 December 2009, BAA (AH) Limited (“BAA”) completed the sale of the Company to Ivy Bidco Limited, a 
UK incorporated company. On 2 March 2011, Ivy Bidco Limited transferred its shares in the Company to Ivy 
Holdco Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary.  
 
The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ivy Holdco Limited, a United Kingdom (“UK”) incorporated 
company, and is ultimately owned by a consortium through a number of UK and overseas holding companies 
and limited liability partnerships.  
 
Gatwick Airport Limited owns 100% of the share capital of Gatwick Funding Limited, a company incorporated 
in Jersey but resident in the UK for tax purposes. Gatwick Airport Limited, its parent entity Ivy Holdco Limited 
and Gatwick Funding Limited are collectively referred to in this Directors’ Report and the financial statements 
as “the Ivy Holdco Group”.  
 
 
(b) Turnover 
 
Turnover is recognised in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS”) 5 ‘Reporting the substance of 
transactions’, net of VAT, rebates and discounts, and comprises: 
 

 Airport and other traffic charges: 
 Passenger charges levied on passengers on departure; 
 Aircraft landing charges levied according to noise certification and weight on landing; 

 Aircraft parking charges based on a combination of weight and time parked; and  
 Other charges levied (e.g. fixed electrical ground power) when these services are rendered. 

 

 Property and operational facilities: 
 Property letting income, recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the rental period;  

 Usage charges made for the operational systems (e.g. check-in desks, baggage handling), 
recognised as each service is provided;  

 Proceeds from the sale of trading properties, recognised on the unconditional completion of the sale; 
and  

 Other invoiced sales, recognised on the performance of the service. 
 

 Retail: 

 Concession fees recognised based upon weekly sales turnover information supplied by 
concessionaires, which is verified at least annually by sales turnover certificates supplied by 
concessionaires. 

 

 Car parking: 
 Car park income is recognised based upon the date of parking. 

 

 Contractual income is treated as deferred income and released to the profit and loss account as earned. 
 

 
(c) Investment in subsidiaries 
 
Investments are held as fixed assets and are stated at cost and reviewed for impairment if there are 
indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

 
2.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(d)  Exceptional items 
 
Exceptional items are material items of income and expense that, because of the unusual nature or 
frequency of the events giving rise to them, merit separate presentation to allow an understanding of the 
Company’s financial performance. Such items may include gains or losses on disposal of assets, impairment 
of assets, major reorganisation of business, closure or mothballing of terminals and those costs incurred in 
bringing new airport terminal complexes and airfields to operational readiness that are not able to be 
capitalised as part of the project.  
 
Details of items treated as exceptional are provided in note 7. 
 
(e)  Tangible assets 
 
(i)  Operational assets 
Terminal complexes, airfield assets, plant and equipment and Company occupied properties are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation. Assets in the course of construction are stated at cost less provision for 
impairment (if any). Assets in the course of construction are transferred to completed assets when 
substantially all the activities necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete. Where appropriate, cost 
includes relevant borrowing costs, own labour costs of construction and related project management costs, 
and directly attributable overheads. Costs associated with projects that are in the early stages of planning 
are capitalised where the Directors are satisfied that it is probable the necessary consents will be received 
and the resources will be available to achieve a successful delivery of an asset such that future commercial 
returns will flow to the Company. 
 
The Company reviews these projects on a regular basis, and at least every six months, to determine whether 
events or circumstances have arisen that may indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be 
recoverable, at which point the asset would be assessed for impairment. 
 
(ii)  Investment properties 
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is valued at the 
balance sheet date at open market value. All investment properties are revalued annually by the Directors 
and at least once every five years by external valuers. Any surplus or deficit on revaluation is transferred to 
revaluation reserve with the exception of deficits below original cost which are expected to be permanent 
which are charged to the profit and loss account. The Company’s car parking assets are held as investment 
properties.  
 
Profits or losses arising from the sale of investment properties are calculated by reference to book value. 
Profits are recognised on completion of the sale transaction. Any past revaluation surpluses or deficits in the 
revaluation reserve relating to such assets are dealt with as a reserve transfer. 
 
In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) 19 ‘Accounting for Investment 
Properties’, no depreciation is provided in respect of freehold or long leasehold investment properties. This is 
a departure from the Companies Act 2006 which requires all properties to be depreciated. Such properties 
are not held for consumption but for investment and the Directors consider that to depreciate them would not 
give a true and fair view. Depreciation is only one amongst many factors reflected in the annual valuation of 
properties and accordingly the amount of depreciation which might otherwise have been charged cannot be 
separately identified or quantified. The Directors consider that this policy results in the financial statements 
giving a true and fair view. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
2.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(e)  Tangible assets (continued) 
(iii) Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided on operational assets, other than land, and assets in the course of construction, to write 
off the cost of the assets, less estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over their expected useful life as 
follows: 
 

 Terminal building, pier and satellite structures 20 - 60 years 

 Terminal fixtures and fittings 5 - 20 years 

 Airport plant and equipment:  

 baggage systems 15 years 

 screening equipment 7 years 

 lifts, escalators, travelators 20 years 

 other plant and equipment including 
runway lighting and building plant 

5 - 20 years 

 Airport tunnels, bridges and subways 50 - 100 years 

 Runway surfaces 10 - 15 years 

 Runway bases 100 years 

 Taxiways and aprons 50 years 

 Motor vehicles 4 - 8 years 

 Office equipment 5 - 10 years 

 Computer equipment 4 - 8 years 

 Computer software 3 - 8 years 

 Short leasehold properties over period of lease 
 
The Company assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there is an indication that an asset’s residual 
value and/or useful life may not be appropriate. If such indication exists, the useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate. 
 
(f)  Impairment of assets  
 
The Company assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. Where the asset does not generate cash 
flows that are independent of other assets, the recoverable amount of the income-generating unit to which 
the asset belongs is estimated. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net realisable value and its 
value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses of 
continuing operations are recognised in the profit and loss account in those expense categories consistent 
with the function of the impaired asset. 
 
An assessment is made at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 
was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. 
That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. After such a reversal, the 
depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount less any 
residual value, on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful life. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(g)  Interest 
 

Interest payable resulting from financing tangible fixed assets whilst in the course of construction is 

capitalised once planning permission has been obtained and a firm decision to proceed taken. Capitalisation 

of interest ceases once the asset is complete and ready for use. Interest may be capitalised for projects in 

the early stages of planning where the Directors are satisfied that the necessary planning, building and 

resource consents will be received. Interest is charged to the profit and loss account as depreciation 

expense over the life of the relevant asset. 

 
All other interest payable and fees payable for the non-utilisation of credit facilities are charged to the profit 
and loss account as incurred. 
 
(h)  Leases 
 
Operating leases 
 
(i)  Company as lessor 
Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership are classified as 
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying value of 
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as the income. 
 
(ii) Company as lessee 
Rental costs under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account in equal instalments over the 
period of the lease. 
 
Finance leases 
 
(i) Company as lessor 
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Company’s 
net investment in the lease. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.  
 
(ii)  Company as lessee 
Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding 
liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to the profit and loss account, 
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the 
Company’s policy on borrowing costs. 
 
(i)  Stocks 
 
Raw materials and consumables consist of engineering spares and other consumable stores and are valued at 
the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 
(j)  Debtors 
 
Debtors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method, less provision for impairment. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(k)  Pensions 
 
The Company operates a self administered defined benefit plan. In accordance with FRS 17 ‘Retirement 
benefits’, the current service cost, together with the cost of any benefits relating to past service, is charged to 
the profit and loss account. A charge equal to the increase in the present value of the plan liabilities 
(because the benefits are closer to settlement) and a credit equivalent to the Company’s long-term expected 
return on assets (based on the market value of the scheme assets at the start of the year) are included in the 
profit and loss account.  
 

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the ‘projected unit method’. 
The difference between the market value of the assets of the plan and the present value of accrued pension 
liabilities is shown as an asset or liability on the balance sheet net of deferred tax.  
 
The statement of recognised gains and losses includes actuarial gains and losses in the year in which they 
occur and the difference between the expected return on assets and that actually achieved. Actuarial gains 
and losses arise from changes in actuarial assumptions and where experience is not in line with assumptions 
made at the beginning of the year.  

 
The Company also operates a defined contribution scheme. The pension costs of this scheme are charged 
to the profit and loss account in the year in which they are incurred. 
 
(l)  Current and deferred taxation 
 
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss 
account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also 
recognised in equity. 
 
Current tax assets or liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted by balance sheet date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. 
 

In accordance with FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax’, deferred tax is provided in full on timing differences which result 

in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates 

expected to apply when they crystallise based on current tax rates and law. Timing differences arise from the 

inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which 

they are included in financial statements. Deferred tax is not provided on timing differences arising from the 

revaluation of investment properties where there is no commitment to sell the asset. 

 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that they will be 

recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. 

 

Deferred taxation is determined using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted, or substantively 

enacted, by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences 

are expected to reverse. 
 
(m) Creditors 
 
Creditors excluding borrowings are non interest bearing and are stated at their fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
2.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

(n) Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured 
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date and are 
discounted to present value where the effect is material. 
 

(o)  Share capital 
 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and are recorded at the par value of proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs. Where shares are issued above par value, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in 
the share premium account. 

 
(p)  Share-based payments 
 
Certain employees of the Company participate in a long term incentive plan (“LTIP”). Under this equity-
settled plan, the Company receives services from these employees as consideration for equity instruments of 
another Group company. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the 
equity instruments is recognised as an expense, with the corresponding entry being a capital contribution to 
the Company from Ivy Bidco Limited, the group entity ultimately issuing the equity instruments. 
 
The fair value of the employee services received is determined by reference to the fair value of the equity 
instruments granted, measured by use of a valuation model. Fair value excludes the impact of any non-
market service and performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and 
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period). Non-market vesting conditions are 
included in assumptions about the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest. The total amount 
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting 
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the Company revises its estimates of the number 
of equity instruments that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the 
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the profit and loss account, with a corresponding 
adjustment to equity. 

 

(q) Dividend distribution 
 
A dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial 
statements in the year in which the shareholders’ right to receive payment of the dividend is established by 
approval of the dividend at the Annual General Meeting, or board meeting for interim dividends.  
 
(r)  Cash and liquid resources 
 
Cash, for the purpose of the cash flow statement, comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, 
less overdrafts payable on demand. 
 
Liquid resources are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or disrupting the 
business and are either readily convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their carrying values or 
traded in an active market. Liquid resources comprise term deposits less than one year (other than cash) 
and investments in money market managed funds. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
2.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
(s)  Debt issue costs and arrangement fees  
 
Immediately after issue, debt is stated at the fair value of the consideration received on the issue of the 
capital instrument after deduction of issue costs. The finance cost of the debt is allocated to periods over the 
term of the debt at an effective interest rate on the carrying amount.  
 

Issue costs are those that are incurred directly in connection with the issue of a capital instrument, that would 
not have been incurred had the instrument not been issued. These are accounted for as a deduction from 
the amount of consideration received and amortised under the effective interest rate method. 
 
Facility and arrangement fees resulting from the negotiation of finance that do not qualify as issue costs are 
written off to the profit and loss account as incurred. Debt issue costs on refinanced instruments are written off. 
 
(t)  Derivative financial instruments 
 
The derivative financial instruments utilised by the Company are interest rate and index-linked swaps. 
 
The purpose of the interest rate swaps is to hedge the cash interest rate risk that arises on borrowings with 
variable interest rates. Interest receivable on the swaps matches the benchmark interest rate payable on the 
borrowings, and interest payable is at a fixed rate. The purpose of the index-linked swaps is to hedge the 
inflation risk arising on inflation related income, particularly RPI linked aircraft and other traffic charges. 
Interest receivable on the swaps matches the benchmark interest rate payable on the borrowings, and 
interest payable on the swaps is based on a fixed real interest rate (excluding inflation) plus a periodic 
inflation adjustment amount based on the cumulative movement in the RPI inflation index. On each five year 
anniversary date of the index-linked swaps, a further payment is made based on the cumulative movement in 
the RPI index applied to the notional principal value of the swaps.  
 

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for in accordance with FRS 4 ‘Capital Instruments’. The 

periodic amounts of interest payable and receivable on interest rate and index-linked swaps, and the periodic 

change in the accrued amount of inflation accretion on the notional principal value of the index-linked swaps, 

are taken to the profit and loss account; accrued interest payable and receivable is included in current 

creditors or debtors; and the inflation accretion accrual is included in non-current debt on the balance sheet.  
 
(u)  Debt and financial liabilities 
 

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently stated at 

amortised cost. Any difference between the amount initially recognised (net of transaction costs) and the 

redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using the 

effective interest method. 
 
(v)  Related party disclosures 
 
The Company’s ultimate parent entity in the UK is Ivy Midco Limited, a company registered in England and 
Wales. The results of the Company are included in the audited consolidated financial statements of Ivy 
Midco Limited for the year ended 31 March 2014. The results of the Company will be included in the audited 
consolidated financial statements of Ivy Luxco I S.à.r.l. for the year ended 31 March 2014 (the largest group 
to consolidate these financial statements for the year).  
 
The Company is exempt under the terms of FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing related party 
transactions with entities that are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Ivy Midco Limited group.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 
 
In applying the Company’s accounting policies, management have made estimates and judgements. Actual 
results may, however, differ from the estimates calculated and management believe that the following are the 
more significant judgements impacting these financial statements. 
 
Investment properties 
 
Investment properties were valued at fair value at 31 March 2014 by Drivers Jonas Deloitte, Chartered 
Surveyors. The valuations were prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and the appraisal and valuation 
manual issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations were carried out having regard to 
comparable market evidence. In assessing fair value, current and potential future income (after deduction of 
non-recoverable outgoings) has been capitalised using yields derived from market evidence. 
 
Pensions 
 
Certain assumptions have been adopted for factors that determine the valuation of the Company’s liability for 
pension obligations at year end and future returns on pension scheme assets and charges to the profit and 
loss account. The factors have been determined in consultation with the Company’s actuary taking into 
account market and economic conditions. Changes in assumptions can vary from year to year as a result of 
changing conditions and other determinants which may cause increases or decreases in the valuation of the 
Company’s liability for pension obligations. The objective of setting pension scheme assumptions for future 
years is to reflect the expected actual outcomes. The impact of the change in assumptions on the valuation 
of the net financial position for pension schemes is reflected in the statement of recognised gains and losses. 
Further details are available in note 27. 
 
Taxation 
 
Provision for tax contingencies require management to make judgements and estimates in relation to tax 
issues and exposures. Amounts provided are based on management’s interpretation of the specific tax law 
and the likelihood of settlement. Tax benefits are not recognised unless the tax positions are probable of 
being sustained. In arriving at this position, management reviews each material tax benefit to assess whether 
a provision should be taken against full recognition of the benefit on the basis of potential settlement through 
negotiation and/or litigation. All such provisions are included in current tax liabilities. 
 
Fair value of derivative financial instruments 
 
The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined by using valuation techniques. These 
techniques require judgement and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at 
each reporting date. The valuation technique used is a discounted cash flow methodology. 
 



GATWICK AIRPORT LIMITED 
 

 50 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS 
 
The Directors consider the business has only one segment (defined as the Airport due to the nature of its 
regulatory environment, type of operation, geographic location, and internal management reporting framework). 
All of the Company’s turnover arises in the United Kingdom and is from continuing operations. Additional details 
of the turnover generated by each of the Company’s key activities are given below. 
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
Turnover £m  £m  
   
Airport and other traffic charges 317.4  285.8  
Retail 135.1  123.2  
Car parking 65.6  58.1  
Property income 25.7  25.7  
Operational facilities and utilities income 27.3  25.4  
Other 22.6  20.7  

 593.7  538.9  
 

 
 
 
5. OPERATING COSTS  
 Year ended  

31 March  
 2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

 2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Wages and salaries 127.5  115.8  
Social security costs 10.0  9.1  
Pension costs 20.2  16.5  
Share-based payments 0.6  0.6  
Other staff related costs 6.3  7.1  

Staff costs 164.6  149.1  
   
Retail expenditure 1.7  1.1  
Car parking expenditure 17.1  16.5  
Depreciation 112.4  110.7  
Maintenance expenditure 36.7  37.1  
Rent and rates 28.4  28.2  
Utility costs 18.9  19.8  
Police costs 11.7  12.2  
General expenses 28.1  20.3  
Aerodrome navigation service costs 18.6  19.7  
Electricity distribution fee 8.5  7.8  

 446.7  422.5  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
5. OPERATING COSTS (continued) 
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
Operating costs include: £m  £m  
   
Training expenditure 1.1  0.9  
Rentals under operating leases   
- Plant and machinery 8.6  7.8  
- Other operating leases 0.8  0.8  
Services provided by the Company’s auditor   
- Audit fees 0.2  0.2  
- Other non-audit services

1
 0.1  0.1  

 
1
 

Other non-audit services relate to reviews of the Company’s Regulatory Accounts, financial covenants, information systems and work in relation to the fixed rate 

bond issuances in the current year (see note 20). 

 
Employee information 
 
The average number of full time equivalent (“FTE”) employees during the year to 31 March 2014 analysed by 
function was: 
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
   
Operational 2,105  2,070  
Other 349  301  

 2,454  2,371  

 
 
 
6. NET INTEREST RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE) AND SIMILAR CHARGES - EXCEPTIONAL  
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
Provision released/(recognised) on financial derivatives (a) 40.9  (49.1)  
Financing fees written off (b) (1.7)  -  

Net interest receivable/(payable) and similar charges – 
exceptional 

39.2  (49.1)  

 
 

(a) The £40.9 million provision released on financial derivatives (2013: £49.1 million recognised) 
represents the year-on-year decrease in the present value of expected net cash outflows on interest 
rate and index-linked derivative contracts (refer to note 21). Although the contracts are economic 
hedges, they do not fully satisfy the requirements of UK GAAP in order for hedge accounting to be 
applied. Due to the size and nature of this balance it has been recognised as an exceptional item. 
 

(b) Upon termination of the Company’s Bank Facilities Agreement on 27 March 2014 as part of the 
Company’s re-financing programme (note 20), unamortised arrangement and participation fees 
relating the terminated facility totalling £1.7m were written off. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
7. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS – TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Impairment of tangible fixed assets (a) 3.9  -  

   
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets (b) 5.5  2.4  

   
 

(a) In the year ended 31 March 2014 the Company impaired tangible fixed assets by £3.9 million 
because it was deemed that certain projects had changed scope significantly, and the costs 
associated with them should not be carried forward to completion. No such costs were incurred in 
the year ended 31 March 2013. 

 
(b) Losses on disposal of tangible fixed assets totalled £5.5 million during the year (2013: £2.4 million). 

These losses relate to assets no longer in use at the Airport. 
 
 
8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS  
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £’000  £’000  
Directors’ emoluments   
Aggregate emoluments 1,875  1,602  
Aggregate amount of contributions paid in respect of money 
purchase schemes 

61  57  

Aggregate amounts receivable under long-term incentive schemes 431  427  

   
Highest paid director’s remuneration   
Total amount of emoluments and amounts receivable under long-
term incentive schemes 1,116  1,011  
Total amount of contributions paid in respect of money purchase 
schemes 33  31  

   
 
Five directors (2013: five) were not remunerated during the year for services to the Company. No directors 
exercised share options during the year (2013: nil). No directors are members of the Gatwick Airport Limited 
defined benefit pension plan. No compensation was received by former directors for loss of office during the 
year (2013: nil). 
 
Two directors had awards receivable in the form of shares under the Company’s LTIP (2013: two). These 
two directors are party to a loan agreement with Gatwick Airport Limited, amounting to £1.9 million (2013: 
£1.9 million), the purpose of which is to enable the directors to fund the allotment of equity instruments of Ivy 
Bidco Limited under the LTIP agreement. Further details have been provided in note 12.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
9. NET INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES – ORDINARY 
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
Interest payable   
Interest on bank borrowings

1
 6.3  4.2  

Interest on borrowings from other group undertakings
2
 82.1  88.5  

Net interest payable on derivative financial instruments
3
 0.4  0.3  

Net interest payable on derivative financial instruments
 
with other 

group undertakings
3
 

7.8  4.8  

Amortisation of debt costs
4 

3.5  3.3  
Non-utilisation fees on bank facilities 2.9  3.7  

 103.0  104.8  
Interest receivable   
Net return on pension scheme (2.0) (2.5) 
Interest receivable on money markets and bank deposits (0.7) (0.1) 
Finance lease income (0.7) (0.4) 

 (3.4) (3.0) 
Less: capitalised borrowings costs

5
 (8.6) (8.6) 

Net interest payable 91.0  93.2  

 
1
 

These amounts mainly relate to interest payable on loans drawn under the £300 million Authorised Credit Facilities Agreement. 

2
 

This amount relates to borrowings under the Borrower Loan Agreement with Gatwick Funding Limited entered into on 24 February 2011, and a Loan Agreement 

with Ivy Bidco Limited entered into on 3 December 2009 that was amended and restated under a Deed dated 15 February 2011. 

3
 

These amounts relate to interest rate derivatives of £32.3 million and £396 million index-linked derivatives. In January 2012, £154.3 million of floating to index-

linked swaps were restructured as fixed to index-linked swaps coinciding with a further bond issue. In March 2014, £97.0 million of floating to index-linked 

swaps were restructured as fixed to index-linked swaps coinciding with a further bond issue. In March 2014, £40 million of fixed to index linked and £40m index 

linked to floating rate swaps, expiring in March 2016 were undertaken by the company. Refer to note 21 for detail on the nominal value of the Company’s 

swaps. These amounts include inflation accretion on index-linked swaps.  

4
 

These amounts relate to the debt costs incurred in relation to the Company’s refinancing on 20 January 2012 and on 2 March 2011 (refer to note 20). 
 

5
 

Borrowing costs have been capitalised using a rate of 5.9% (2013: 6.0%), which is the weighted average of rates applicable to the Company’s overall 

borrowings outstanding during the year. The capitalised interest amount is calculated by applying the capitalisation rate to the average monthly balance of 

assets in the course of construction, after deducting the value of construction work undertaken but not paid for, and included in the value of such assets (see 

note 14). 



GATWICK AIRPORT LIMITED 
 

 54 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
10. TAX ON PROFIT/(LOSS) ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 
 
  

 
Note 

Year ended  
31 March  

2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
  £m  £m  
Current tax    
Total current tax charge  -  -  

    
Deferred tax     
Origination and reversal of timing differences  28.9  0.3  
Adjustment in respect of prior years  (0.5) (0.7) 
Effect of change in tax rate  (0.1) 1.2  

Total deferred tax charge 16 28.3  0.8  

Tax charge on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities  28.3  0.8  

 
 
Reconciliation of tax charge 
 
The standard rate of current tax for the year, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax is 23% (2013: 
24%). The actual tax charge for the current and prior year differs from the standard rate for the reasons set 
out in the following reconciliation: 
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax 85.8  (28.3) 

   
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities at 23% (2013: 24%) 19.7  (6.8) 
   
Effect of:   
   
Pension commutation payment (6.2) (6.5) 
Trading losses (utilised)/carried forward (20.9) 7.9  
Capital allowances for the year in excess of depreciation (2.5) (1.5) 
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 9.3  7.3 
Other short-term timing differences 0.7  (0.3) 
Non taxable income (0.1) (0.1) 

Current tax charge for the year -  -  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
10. TAX ON LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES (continued) 
 
The Finance Act 2013, which provides for reductions in the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% 
effective from 1 April 2014 and to 20% effective from 1 April 2015, was substantially enacted on 2 July 2013. 
These reductions have been reflected in the deferred tax figure at the balance sheet date, which has been 
calculated at 20%. 
 
Other than this change, and the unprovided deferred tax discussed in note 16, there are no items which 
would materially affect the future tax charge. 
 
 
 
11. DIVIDENDS 
 
On 17 December 2013 the Directors declared and paid an interim dividend of 2.97p per share amounting to 
£10.0 million (2013: nil). The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2013: nil). 
 
 
 
12. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 
 
The Company has an LTIP for certain members of its Executive Management Board. The LTIP relates to 
equity instruments of Ivy Bidco Limited, the entity which owns the Company’s parent.  
 
The value of these equity instruments will be based on the internal rate of return (“IRR”) achieved by the 
Company’s controlling shareholder from acquisition to sale of their investment in the Company. Below a 
minimum IRR threshold, these equity instruments will have no value. Above a ceiling IRR, the value of these 
equity instruments are capped. These equity instruments will vest over a period of six or eight years, 
depending on the member. 
 
The initial investment by participants at 1 October 2011 is at price equal to the estimated fair value, for 
taxation purposes, of the equity instrument at inception of the scheme. The equity instrument has been 
valued for accounting purposes applying a simplified binomial valuation methodology, using the output of a 
discounted cash flow model under a series of probability weighted scenarios as to the financial performance 
of the Company, including dividend cash flows, and the timing and level of any future sale. The Company 
recognised total expenses of £0.6 million related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the 
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: £0.6 million).  
 
The participants in the scheme are party to a loan agreement with Gatwick Airport Limited, amounting to £2.8 
million (2013: £2.8 million), the purpose of which is to enable the participants to fund the allotment of equity 
instruments of Ivy Bidco Limited under the LTIP agreement. The participants have directed Gatwick Airport 
Limited to pay monies lent under the loan agreement directly to Ivy Bidco Limited for that purpose. The loan 
is interest free and repayable under the terms set out in the loan agreement. In particular, the loan has no 
fixed duration, but shall become repayable in full no later than two business days after the date on which the 
participant disposes of their equity instruments. 
 
 
 
13. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKING 
 
The Company holds 100% of the issued share capital of Gatwick Funding Limited (“GFL”). GFL has share 
capital of £2.00 comprising two ordinary shares at £1.00 per share (2013: share capital of £2.00 comprising 
two ordinary shares at £1.00 per share). 
 
The Directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
14. TANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

  
Investment  
properties  

£m   

 
Land held for  
development  

£m   

 
Terminal  

complexes   
£m   

 
 

Airfields  
£m   

Group  
occupied  

properties  
£m   

Plant,  
equipment &  
other assets  

£m   

Assets in the  
course of  

construction  
£m   

 
 

Total  
£m  

Cost or valuation                
                
1 April 2013 688.2   4.1   1,708.6   293.0   32.6   222.0   185.7   3,134.2  
Additions at cost -   -   -   -   -   -   201.0   201.0  
Transfers to 
completed assets 1.9   -   139.7   32.3   22.2   62.1   (258.2)  -  
Interest capitalised -   -   -   -   -   -   8.6   8.6  
Disposals (2.1)  -   (134.5)  (2.1)  (0.1)  (30.4)  -   (169.2) 
Impairments -   -   -   -   -   -   (3.9)  (3.9) 
Revaluation 62.3   -   -   -   -   -   -   62.3  
Reclass between 
asset categories 

 
(7.7)  

  
(0.4)  -   -   8.1    -   -   -  

31 March 2014 742.6   3.7   1,713.8   323.2   62.8   253.7   133.2   3,233.0  

                
Depreciation                
                
1 April 2013 -   -   763.6   87.4   7.3   115.5   -   973.8  
Charge for the year -   -   61.3   15.2   2.1   33.8   -   112.4  
Disposals -   -   (130.5)  (1.8)  (0.1)  (30.4)  -   (162.8) 

31 March 2014 -   -   694.4   100.8   9.3   118.9   -   923.4  

                
Net book value                
                
31 March 2014 742.6   3.7   1,019.4   222.4   53.5   134.8   133.2   2,309.6  

                
31 March 2013 688.2   4.1   945.0   205.6   25.3   106.5   185.7   2,160.4  

 
 



GATWICK AIRPORT LIMITED 

 

 

57 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
14. TANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 
 
Valuation 
 
Investment properties and land held for development were valued at open market value at 31 March 2014 by 
Drivers Jonas Deloitte, Chartered Surveyors at £746.3 million (2013: £692.3 million). These valuations were 
prepared in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual issued by The Royal Institution of 
Chartered Surveyors taking account, inter alia, of planning constraints and reflecting the demand for airport 
related uses. As a result of the valuation, a surplus of £62.3 million (2013: £27.7 million) has been 
transferred to the revaluation reserve.  
 
The Company’s car parking assets are held as investment properties. 
 
Remaining group occupied properties, terminal complexes, airfield infrastructure, plant and equipment, and 
other assets, have been shown at historical cost. 
 
Capitalised interest 
 
Included in the cost of assets are interest costs of £121.3 million (2013: £112.7 million). £8.6 million (2013: £8.6 
million) has been capitalised in the year at a capitalisation rate of 5.9% (2013: 6.0%) based on a weighted 
average cost of borrowings. 
 
A tax deduction of £8.6 million for capitalised interest was taken in the year (2013: £8.6 million). Subsequent 
depreciation of the capitalised interest is disallowed for tax purposes. Consequently, the capitalised interest 
gives rise to a deferred tax liability, which is released each year in line with the depreciation charged on the 
relevant assets. 
 
Historical cost 
 
The historical cost of investment properties and land held for development at 31 March 2014 was £178.2 
million (2013: £186.1 million).  
 
Leased assets 
 
The Company had assets rented to third parties under operating leases as follows: 
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Cost or valuation 528.3  497.6  
Accumulated depreciation (96.6) (106.8) 

Net book value 431.7  390.8  

 
A proportion of Terminal complexes are occupied by third parties under concession and management 
agreements. 
 
The Company has assets held under finance leases, capitalised and included in tangible fixed assets as 
follows:  
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Cost or valuation 3.0  -  
Accumulated depreciation (0.1) -  

Net book value 2.9  -  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
14. TANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 
 
Security 
 
As part of the refinancing agreements outlined in note 20, the Company and its parent, Ivy Holdco Limited, 
have granted security over their assets and share capital to the Company’s secured creditors via a Security 
Agreement, with Deutsche Trustee Company Limited acting as the Borrower Security Trustee. 
 
 
 
15. STOCKS 
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Raw materials and consumables 3.6 3.3  

 
The replacement cost of raw materials and consumables at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 was not 
materially different than the amount at which they are included in the financial statements. 
 
 
 
16. DEBTORS 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
Due within one year:   
Trade debtors 24.0  25.9  
Accrued interest receivable from other group undertakings 1.3  1.4  
Amounts owed by group undertakings – interest free 0.2  0.2  
Other debtors 4.6  8.3  
Prepayments and accrued income 15.7  13.9  

 45.8  49.7  
Due after more than one year:   
Deferred tax

 
(a) -  29.0  

Finance lease receivable 16.9  16.8  
Amounts owed by group undertakings – interest bearing 0.1  0.1  

Total debtors 62.8  95.6  
 

During the prior year, an asset previously recognised as an investment property was transferred to finance 
lease receivables on signing of a long term lease agreement for the property.  
 

(a) Deferred tax 
 
Analysis of the deferred tax balances are as follows: 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (36.5) (38.9) 
Trading losses carried forward 36.4  61.8  
Pension commutation payment -  6.2  
Other timing differences (0.1) (0.1) 

Total deferred tax (liability)/asset (0.2) 29.0  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
16. DEBTORS (continued) 
 
No provision has been made for deferred tax on gains recognised on revaluing investment properties to their 
market value or on the sale of properties where potentially taxable gains have been rolled over into replacement 
assets. Taxable gains will crystallise only if the property were sold without it being possible to claim rollover relief. 
The total amount of tax unprovided is £98.9 million (2013: £103.0 million). At present, it is not envisaged that this 
tax will become payable in the foreseeable future. 
 
Movements in the deferred tax balances (excluding deferred tax asset relating to pension deficit) above are 
charged to the profit and loss account. 
 
 
Deferred tax asset relating to pension deficit: 
 
 
 

31 March  
2014  

31 March  
2013  

 £m  £m  
   
1 April  2.0  (2.0) 
Deferred tax credit in profit and loss account 0.9  0.1  
Deferred tax credited to the statement of total recognised gains and 
losses on actuarial gains 

1.9  3.9  

   

31 March  4.8  2.0  

 
Provisions for deferred taxation have been made in accordance with FRS 19. 
 
 
 
17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

 31 March  
2014  

31 March  
2013  

 £m  £m  
   
Cash at bank and in hand 13.4  0.5  

 
Cash at bank and in hand represents amounts held on operating bank accounts which generally earn 
interest at floating rates based on the prevailing bank base rate and are subject to interest rate risk. 
 
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximate their book value. 
 
Board approved investment policies and relevant debt facility agreements provide counterparty investment 
limits based on short and long-term credit ratings.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
18. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 

 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Trade creditors 19.7  15.2  
Accruals  24.4  21.0  
Capital creditors 49.7  51.6  
Amounts owed to group undertakings – interest free 2.8  2.8  
Other tax and social security 2.8  2.7  
Accrued financing charges -  0.3  
Accrued interest payable -  0.1  
Accrued interest payable to other group undertakings 10.3  10.0  
Finance lease liabilities 0.3  0.2  
Other creditors 2.0  2.1  
Deferred income 12.3  11.1  

 124.3  117.1  

 
 
 
19.  CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR 
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Borrowings (refer to note 20) 1,520.7  1,404.0  
Amounts owed to group undertakings – interest bearing

1
 49.0  133.1  

Accrued financing charges payable to other group undertakings
2
 58.6  44.2  

Deferred tax liability (refer to note 16) 0.2  -  

Finance lease liabilities 2.7  -  

 1,631.2  1,581.3  

 
1
 

Amounts owed to group undertakings – interest bearing represents amounts owing to Ivy Bidco Limited. 

2
 

Accrued financing charges payable to other group undertakings relate to the cumulative inflation accretion on index-linked swaps with Gatwick Funding Limited. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
20. BORROWINGS 
 

 
31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
Non-Current borrowings   
Borrower Loan Agreement   

Fixed rate borrowings from other group undertakings 1,523.4  1,179.8  
Initial Authorised Credit Facility Agreement   

Term Facility -  102.2  
Capex Facility -  92.0  
Revolving Credit Facility -  30.0  
Authorised Credit Facility - Revolving Facility

1
  (2.7)  -  

Total non-current borrowings 1,520.7  1,404.0  

   
Maturity Profile:   
Repayable between 1 and 2 Years -  224.2  
Repayable between 2 and 5 Years (2.7)  -  
Repayable in more than 5 Years 1,523.4  1,179.8  

 1,520.7  1,404.0  

 
1
 

Amount includes capitalised upfront costs in relation to the new bank facilities entered into during the year. These costs will be amortised over the term of the 

facility.  

 
All the above borrowings are secured and carried at amortised cost. 
 
Ivy Holdco Group Facilities 
 
Gatwick Airport Limited is party to a Common Terms Agreement (“CTA”) with, inter alia, the Royal Bank of 
Scotland plc as ACF agent and previously the Initial ACF agent. The Company has a Borrower Loan 
Agreement with both Gatwick Funding Limited (as Issuer) and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited (as 
Borrower Security Trustee). The CTA together with a Master Definitions Agreement covers, inter alia, the 
Initial Authorised Credit Facility Agreement (the “Initial ACF Agreement”), the Authorised Credit Facility 
Agreement (the “ACF Agreement”) and the Borrower Loan Agreement.  
 
The Initial ACF Agreement which comprised a Term Facility of £620.0 million, a non-revolving Capex Facility 
of £300.0 million and a Revolving Credit Facility of £50.0 million, had the outstanding drawings of £106.4 
million, £191.0 million and £25.0 million respectively fully prepaid and terminated on 27 March 2014.  
 
The ACF Agreement entered into on 27 March 2014 has a Revolving Credit Facility of £300.0 million. The 
ACF Agreement terminates on 27 March 2019. No drawings are outstanding on the Revolving Credit Facility 
at 31 March 2014. 
 
The Company’s subsidiary Gatwick Funding Limited, had previously issued £1,200 million of publicly listed 
fixed rate secured Bonds comprising £300 million Class A 6.125 per cent. Bonds with scheduled and legal 
maturities of 2026 and 2028 respectively, £300 million Class A 6.5 per cent. Bonds with scheduled and legal 
maturities of 2041 and 2043 respectively, £300 million Class A 5.25 per cent. Bonds with scheduled and 
legal maturities of 2024 and 2026 respectively and £300 million Class A 5.75 per cent. Bonds with scheduled 
and legal maturities of 2037 and 2039 respectively.  
 
On 27 March 2014, Gatwick Funding Limited, issued a further £350.0 million of publicly listed fixed rate 
secured bonds comprising £350 million Class A 4.625 per cent. Bonds with scheduled and legal maturities of 
2034 and 2036 respectively. 
 
The proceeds of all bond issuances by Gatwick Funding Limited (together “the Bonds”) are lent to the 
Company under the Borrower Loan Agreement, the terms of which are “back-to-back” with those of the 
Bonds.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
20. BORROWINGS (continued) 
 
 
At 31 March 2014, the average interest rate payable on borrowings was 5.87% p.a. (2013: 5.78% p.a.). 
 
At 31 March 2014, the Company had £300.0 million (2013: £228.0 million) undrawn committed borrowing 
facilities available in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at that date.  
 
 
Financial covenants 
 
Under the CTA, the Company is required to comply with certain financial and information covenants. All 
financial covenants have been tested and complied with as at 31 March 2014 (2013: all covenants tested 
and complied with).  
 
The following table summarises the Company’s financial covenants compliance as at 31 March 2014 under 
the CTA, and lists the trigger and default levels: 
 

 
Covenant 

Unaudited  
31 March  

2014  

Unaudited  
31 March  

2013  

 
Trigger 

 
Default 

 
Minimum interest cover ratio (“Senior ICR”) 

 
3.15  

 
2.88  

 
< 1.50  

 
< 1.10  

 
Maximum net indebtedness to the total 
regulatory asset base (“Senior RAR” ) 

 
0.64  

 
0.62  

 
> 0.70  

 
> 0.85  

 
 
 
21. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 
 
   

 
Note  

Financial  
derivatives   

 
 

Total  
    £m  £m  
      
1 April 2013    239.8  239.8  
Credited to profit and loss account  6  (40.9)   (40.9) 

31 March 2014    198.9  198.9  

 
Financial derivatives 
The Company has entered into financial derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate 
risk on variable rate borrowings and inflation risk arising on inflation related income. Although the contracts 
are commercial hedges, they do not fully satisfy the requirements of UK GAAP hedge accounting. A 
provision of £198.9 million, equal to the present value of expected net cash outflows on these contracts at 31 
March 2014 (as shown below), has been recognised:  
  
  

Nominal  
Amount  

 
Average  

Term  

Average  
Rate  

Payable  

Average  
Rate  

Receivable  
 

Provision  
 £m  (Yrs)  %  %  £m  
      
Interest rate swaps 32.3  0.68  1.66  0.52  0.2  
Fixed rate to index-linked swaps 
with group undertaking 

396.0  19.0  2.63  5.02  198.7  

Totals 428.3  17.6  2.56  4.68  198.9  

 

  



GATWICK AIRPORT LIMITED 

 

 

63 
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 

 

22. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Called up, allotted and fully paid   
336,300,002 (2013: 336,300,002) ordinary shares of £1.00 each 336.3  336.3  

 
 
 
23. RESERVES 
 

  
 

Note 

Profit and loss  
reserve  

£m  

Revaluation  
reserve  

£m  

 
Total  

£m  
     
1 April 2013  (43.2) 21.9  (21.3) 
Profit for the year  57.5  -  57.5  
Actuarial loss on pension scheme 27 (11.5) -  (11.5) 
UK deferred tax attributable to actuarial 
loss  

27 1.9  -  1.9  

Capital contribution  0.6  -  0.6  
Revaluation surplus 14 -  62.3  62.3  
Dividend 11 (10.0) -  (10.0) 
Transfer between reserves  1.6  (1.6) -  

31 March 2014  (3.1) 82.6  79.5  

 
The profit and loss reserve increased by £0.6 million following a capital contribution from Ivy Bidco Limited as 
a result of the accounting for the Company’s LTIP (refer note 12). 
 
The transfer between reserves of £1.6 million relates to amounts previously recognised in the revaluation 
reserve which were transferred to the profit and loss reserve. This arose due to the transfer of certain assets 
during the year from investment properties to operational assets and the disposal of a number of investment 
properties.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
 
24. ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
Returns on investments and servicing of finance   

Interest received 2.5  2.6  

Interest paid (74.0) (71.4) 

Net cash outflow (71.5) (68.8) 

   
   
Capital expenditure and financial investment   
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (199.0) (234.7) 

Net cash outflow (199.0) (234.7) 

   
   
Financing   
Debt drawn/(repaid) under the Initial ACF Agreement (228.4) 122.0  
Increase/(decrease) in related party borrowings 247.6  (75.0) 

Net cash inflow 19.2  47.0  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
25. ANALYSIS AND RECONCILIATION OF NET DEBT 
 
 1 April  

 2013  Cash flow  Non-cash  
31 March  

2014  
 £m  £m  £m  £m  

     
Cash in hand, at bank 0.5  12.9  -  13.4  

     
Debt due after 1 year (1,404.0) (114.3) (2.4) (1,520.7) 
     

Net debt (1,403.5) (101.4) (2.4) (1,507.3) 

 
 
 31 March  

 2014  
31 March  

 2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Increase/(decrease) in cash in year 12.9  (11.7) 
Increase in borrowings (116.7) (125.3) 

Movement in net debt in year (103.8) (137.0) 
Net debt at 1 April (1,403.5) (1,266.5) 

Net debt at 31 March  (1,507.3) (1,403.5) 

 
Net debt is represented by cash in hand, at bank and external third party bank borrowings and bond debt (note 
20). It does not include amounts owed to other group undertakings. 
 
 
 
26. COMMITMENTS 
 
Capital 
 
Contracted commitments for capital expenditure amount to £64.4 million (2013: £139.8 million). 
 
Commitments under operating leases 
 
At 31 March 2014, the Company was committed to making the following payments during the next year in 
respect of operating leases: 
 
 Land &  

Buildings  
31 March  

2014  
£m  

Other leases  
31 March  

2014  
£m  

Land &  
Buildings  
31 March  

2013  
£m  

Other leases  
31 March  

2013  
£m  

     
Leases which expire:  
- within one year 
- within two to five years 
- after five years 

0.3  
-  

0.8  

0.1  
-  

8.6  

-  
0.3  
0.2  

-  
0.2  
8.5  

     

 1.1  8.7  0.5  8.7  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
26. COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
Other commitments 
 

In June 2006, the UK Government announced its conclusions for 2006-2012 night flights regime at the BAA 

Group’s London airports. The regime committed the Company to introducing a new domestic noise insulation 

scheme to address the impact of night flights on local communities. Based on the Company’s evaluation, 

payments under this scheme are estimated to total £2.0 million, spread over the five year period commencing 

2008. This scheme concluded during the year ended 31 March 2013.  

 
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company reviewed its current policy around the noise alleviation. In 
April 2014 Gatwick launched a new revised domestic noise insulation scheme for local communities affected by 
noise around the airport.  The scheme is one of the most innovative in Europe and covers an additional 1,000 
homes and increases the area eligible by 17km

2
.  We estimate payments under this scheme will total £3.0 

million spread over a four year period. 

 

In addition, there are live blight schemes to support the market for housing in areas identified for a potential 

future runway at Gatwick. Obligation under these schemes will only crystallise once the Company announces its 

intention to pursue a planning application for a new runway.  
 
 
 
27.  PENSION COMMITMENTS 
 
Defined Contribution Plan 
 
The Company operates a defined contribution scheme for all qualifying employees. 
 
The total cost charged to income of £3.3 million (2013: £2.4 million) represents contributions payable to this 
scheme by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at 31 March 2014, no contributions 
(2013: nil) due in respect of the current reporting period remain unpaid to the scheme. 
 
Defined benefit pension plan 
 
For some employees, the Company operates a funded pension plan providing benefits based on final 
pensionable pay. Assets of the plan are held in a separate trustee administered fund. 
 
The results of the formal actuarial valuation as at 30 September 2010 were updated to 31 March 2014 by an 
independent qualified actuary in accordance with FRS 17. The triennial valuation was commenced on 30 
September 2013.  
 
The expected rate of return on assets for the financial year ended 31 March 2014 was 5.7% p.a. (2013: 6.0% 
p.a.). This rate is derived by taking the weighted average of the long term expected rate of return on each of 
the asset classes that the plan was invested in at 31 March 2013, net of expenses: 
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 % p.a. % p.a. 
   
Equities 6.8  6.8  
Index-linked gilts  2.8  2.8  
Diversified growth funds  6.1  6.1  
Cash  0.4  0.4  
 
The estimated amount of total employer contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the year ending 
31 March 2015 is £11.8 million (actual for year ended 31 March 2014: £11.4 million). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
27.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
The following table sets out the key FRS 17 assumptions used for the plan: 
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 %  %  
   
Rate of increase in salaries – to 31 March 2014 3.9  4.0  
Rate of increase in salaries – thereafter 3.9  4.0  
Rate of increase in pensions in payment (RPI) 3.4  3.5  
Rate of increase in pensions in payment (5% LPI) 3.3  3.4  
Discount rate 4.5  4.6  
Retail Prices Index inflation 3.4  3.5  
Consumer Prices Index inflation 2.4  2.5  
 
The mortality assumptions used were as follows: 
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 Years  Years  
   
Life expectancy of male aged 60 in 2014 27.1  26.6  
Life expectancy of male aged 60 in 2034 29.1  28.1  
 
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumption used to measure the plan liabilities are set out below: 
 
Assumption Change in assumption  Impact on plan liabilities  
  £m  
Rate of increase in salaries + 0.5% pa  + 13.0  
Discount rate +/- 0.5% pa  +/- 37.6  
Life expectancy + 1 year  + 9.6  
 
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligations in respect of its defined 
benefit plan is as follows: 
 

 
31 March  

 2014  
31 March  

 2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Present value of plan liabilities (321.1) (290.0) 
Fair value of plan assets 297.1  281.4  

Deficit (24.0) (8.6) 
Related deferred tax asset 4.8  2.0  

Net pension liability (19.2) (6.6) 
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 
 
27.  PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
Reconciliation of present value of plan liabilities 
 

 
 31 March  

 2014  
 31 March  

 2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Opening present value of plan liabilities (290.0) (231.0) 
Current service cost (16.0) (14.0) 
Past service cost (0.9) (0.1) 
Interest cost (13.7) (11.6) 
Contributions from plan members

1
 (2.4) (2.5) 

Benefits paid 2.7  3.1  
Actuarial loss (0.8) (33.9) 

Closing present value of plan liabilities (321.1) (290.0) 

1
 

Contributions from plan members includes contributions paid by the Company on behalf of plan members via salary sacrifice. 

 
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets 
 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Opening fair value of plan assets 281.4  239.2  
Expected return on plan assets 15.7  14.1  
Actuarial (loss)/gain (10.7) 17.1  
Benefits paid (2.7) (3.1) 
Contributions paid by employer 11.0  11.6  
Contributions paid by members 2.4  2.5  

Closing fair value of plan assets 297.1  281.4  

 
The current allocation of the plan’s assets is as follows: 
 31 March  

2014  
31 March  

2013  
   
Equities 37% 40% 
Index-linked gilts 19% 21% 
Diversified growth funds  - Emerging market multi-asset funds 7% - 
Diversified growth funds 37% 39% 

 100% 100% 

 
Plan assets do not include any of the Company’s own financial instruments, or any property occupied by 
Company. 
 
The expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the 
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on index-linked investments are based on 
relevant indices as at the balance sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments and diversified growth 
funds reflect long-term real rates of return expected in the respective markets. 
 
The actual return on plan assets over the year was £4.8 million (2013: £31.2 million). 
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27. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued) 
 
The amounts recognised in operating profit are as follows: 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Past service cost (0.9) (0.1) 
Employer’s part of current service cost (16.0) (14.0) 

Total operating charge (16.9) (14.1) 

 
 
The following amounts are included in ‘net interest payable and similar charges – ordinary’: 
 
 Year ended  

31 March  
2014  

Year ended  
31 March  

2013  
 £m  £m  
   
Expected return on plan assets 15.7  14.1  
Interest cost (13.7) (11.6) 

Total credit to “net interest payable and similar charges – ordinary” 2.0  2.5  

 
Actuarial gains and losses 
 
The amount recognised outside the profit and loss account in the statement of total recognised gains and 
losses for the year ended 31 March 2014 is a loss of £11.5 million (2013: £16.8 million loss). The cumulative 
amount recognised outside the profit and loss account to 31 March 2014 is a £26.6 million loss (to 31 March 
2013: 15.1 million loss). 
 
Amounts for current year and prior years and period 
 
 31 March  

 2014  
31 March  

 2013  
31 March  

 2012  
31 March  

 2011  
31 March  

 2010  
 £m  £m  £m  £m  £m  
      
Present value of plan liabilities (321.1) (290.0) (231.0) (185.5) (178.1) 
Fair value of plan assets 297.1  281.4  239.2  211.1  183.8  

(Deficit)/surplus (24.0) (8.6) 8.2  25.6  5.7  

      
 
 
 
 Year 

ended  
31 March  

2014  

Year 
ended  

31 March  
2013  

 
 
 

Year 
ended  

31 March  
2012  

Year 
ended  

31 March  
2011  

 
4 month 

period 
ended 31 

March 
2010 

Experience adjustments on plan 
liabilities 

     

Amount of gain (£m) 3.0  -  -  3.3  -  
% of plan liabilities 0.9%  -  -  1.8% -  

      
Experience adjustments on plan 
assets 

     

Amount of gain/(loss) (£m) (10.7) 17.1  0.7  (2.0) 9.9  
% of plan assets 3.6% 6.1% 0.3% (0.9%) 5.4% 
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28. CLAIMS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
As part of the refinancing agreements outlined in note 20, the Company and its parent, Ivy Holdco Limited, 
have granted security over their assets and share capital to the Company’s secured creditors via a Security 
Agreement, with Deutsche Trustee Company Limited acting as the Borrower Security Trustee. 
 
Other than the above, the Company has no contingent liabilities, comprising letters of credit, 
performance/surety bonds, performance guarantees and no other items arising in the normal course of 
business at 31 March 2014 (2013: nil). 
 
The Company commenced proceedings on 6 February 2009 against Ryanair for recovery of check-in and 
baggage charges withheld since 2004, which as at 31 March 2014 totalled £4.2 million (2013: £3.7 million). 
The Company concluded negotiations with Ryanair post year end and now considers the matter to be 
settled.  
 

 
 
29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

There have been no material events or circumstances that have occurred after the balance sheet date, but 

prior to the signing of the financial statements, that require disclosure or adjustment to balances and 

transactions that existed at the balance sheet date. 
 
 
 
30. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING ENTITY 
 
The Company’s ultimate parent is Ivy Guernsey Holdings, L.P., a limited partnership registered in Guernsey.  
 
The Company’s ultimate parent in the UK is Ivy Midco Limited, which is the largest parent undertaking in the 
UK to consolidate these financial statements. The consortium that ultimately own and control the Company 
and Ivy Midco Limited are Global Infrastructure Partners (41.95%), the Abu Dhabi Investment Authority 
(15.90%), the California Public Employees' Retirement System (12.78%), National Pension Service of Korea 
(12.14%), and Future Fund Board of Guardians (17.23%). The Company’s results are also included in the 
audited consolidated financial statements of Ivy Luxco I S.à.r.l. and of Ivy Holdco Limited for the year ended 
31 March 2014, the largest and smallest groups to consolidate these financial statements respectively. 
 
Copies of the financial statements of Ivy Midco Limited, Ivy Holdco Limited and Ivy Luxco I S.à.r.l. may be 
obtained by writing to the Company Secretary at 5th Floor Destinations Place, Gatwick Airport, Gatwick, 
West Sussex, RH6 0NP. 
 


